
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

TOWN COUNCIL MEETING  

AGENDA 

TUESDAY, November 3, 2015 

 

 

Mayor David Browning (Seat 4) 

Vice-Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1) 

Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5) 

Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 

Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 

 



 

  TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, November 3, 2015 
      Page 1 of 3  

 

 
Town Council Agenda 
11/03/2015 
 

  
 

Town of Loxahatchee Groves 
Town Council Meeting 

Tuesday, November 3, 2015 - 7:00 p.m. to 10:30 p.m. 
(Times established by Resolution No. 2014-08… commencing at 7:00 p.m., and ending no later than 

10:30 p.m., which can be extended by motion of the Council.) 

 
Town Hall, 155 “F” Road 

 
Mayor David Browning (Seat 4)               Town Manager William F. Underwood, II 
Vice Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1)            Town Clerk Virginia M. Walton 
Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5)    Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo, Jr          
Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3)     
Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE/AGENDA 
 

1. OPENING 
 

a. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 
b. Pledge of Allegiance & Invocation – Mayor Browning 
 
c. Approval of Agenda 

 
2. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
3. CONSENT AGENDA 

(Public Comment will be permitted on consent agenda items prior to Council vote) 
 
a. Minutes:  October 6, 2015 
b. Minutes:  October 20, 2015 
c. Invoice for Goren, Cherof, Doody & Ezrol, P.A. 
d.   Agreement with TFI Office Automation for a four year lease of the Lanier 416518  
 Digital Multi-Function Color Copier System 
 
e.  Resolution No. 2015-36 Budget Amendment for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 1 of 80



 

  TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, November 3, 2015 
      Page 2 of 3  

 

 
Town Council Agenda 
11/03/2015 
 

 
4. PRESENTATIONS – None Scheduled 
 
 
5. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 
a. FAAC Financial Report 2015 
 

6. RESOLUTIONS 
 
 

7. ORDINANCES 
 
 a. ORDINANCE NO. 2015-08 (First Reading – Extend Moratorium)\ 
 
 AN  ORDINANCE  OF  THE  TOWN  COUNCIL  OF  THE  TOWN  OF  LOXAHATCHEE  GROVES,  FLORIDA, 
  AMENDING ORDINANCES 2014‐08 AND 2015‐05, THROUGH WHICH THE TOWN COUNCIL  IMPOSED 
  A MORATORIUM ON THE PROCESSING AND REVIEW OF APPLICATIONS FOR AMENDMENTS TO THE 
  TOWN’S  COMPREHENSIVE  PLAN,  INCLUDING  FUTURE  LAND  USE MAP  AMENDMENTS  AND  TEXT 
  AMENDMENTS,  RELATING  TO  COMMERCIAL  LAND  USES  ON  PROPERTIES  FRONTING  ON 
  OKEECHOBEE BOULEVARD WITHIN THE CORPORATE BOUNDARIES OF THE TOWN UNTIL DECEMBER 
  31,  2015,  TO  EXTEND  THE MORATORIUM  UNTIL  JUNE  30,  2016  TO  ENABLE  THE  ADOPTION  OF 
  APPROPRIATE AMENDMENTS TO THE TOWN’S COMPREHENSIVE PLAN; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; 
  PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
8. MANAGER’S REPORT – Town Manager Underwood 

 
a. Agenda Item Report – Updates on various activities and issues concerning the Town 
 
b. Palm Beach County League of Cities 2016 Priorities List 
 

9. OLD BUSINESS - NONE 
 

10. NEW BUSINESS 
 
a. Okeechobee Corridor Master Plan – Work Authorization Okeechobee Boulevard 
 Planning & Zoning  
 

11. COUNCIL REPORTS 
 
a. Mayor Browning 
  
 1. Town of Palm Beach Letter regarding Legislative Proposal on Standardized 
  Date for Local Government Elections 
 
 

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 2 of 80



 

  TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, November 3, 2015 
      Page 3 of 3  

 

 
Town Council Agenda 
11/03/2015 
 

12. CLOSING COMMENTS 
  

a. Public 
 
b. Town Attorney   

 
1.   Council Ethics Training 
 

c. Town Council Members 
 

 
12.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 

The next regular Town Council Meeting is tentatively scheduled for December 1, 2015. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Comment Cards: Anyone from the public wishing to address the Town Council must complete a Comment Card before speaking. This must 
be filled out completely with your full name and address and given to the Town Clerk. During the meeting, before public comments, you may 
only address the item on the agenda in which is being discussed at the time of your comment. During public comments, you may address any 
item you desire. Please remember that there is a three (3) minute time limit on all public comment. Any person who decides to appeal any 
decision of the Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting will need a record of the proceedings and for such purpose, may 
need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made which included testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
Persons with disabilities requiring accommodations in order to participate should contact the Town Clerk’s Office (561-793-2418), at least 48 
hours in advance to request such accommodation. 

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 3 of 80



 

TOWN COUNCIL MINUTES, TUESDAY, OCTOBER 6, 2015 
      Page 1 of 10  

 

 
10/06/2015 
 

  
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

Town Council Meeting 
Tuesday, October 6, 2015 - 7:00 p.m. to 10:30 p.m. 

(Times established by Resolution No. 2014-08… commencing at 7:00 p.m., and ending no 
later than 10:30 p.m., which can be extended by motion of the Council.) 

TOWN HALL 
155 F Road, Loxahatchee Groves, Florida 33470 

   
 

Mayor David Browning (Seat 4)             Town Manager William F. Underwood, II 
Vice-Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1) Town Clerk, Vacant 
Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5)  Town Planning Consultant Jim Fleischmann 
Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3)  Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo, Jr. 
Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 
 

MINUTES 
 

1. OPENING 
 

a. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 

Mayor Browning called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm.  Present were Mayor David 
Browning, Vice Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel, and Councilmen Tom Goltzene, and Ryan 
Liang.  Councilman Jim Rockett was absent from the meeting.  Also present were Town 
Manager William F. Underwood, II, Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo, Jr., and Perla D 
Underwood, Acting Town Clerk 

 
b. Pledge of Allegiance & Invocation – Mayor Browning 
 
c. Approval of Agenda 

 

 

MOTION:  Councilman Goltzene made a motion to approve the Agenda.  The motion was 
seconded by Vice Mayor Jarriel.   The motion passed 4/0.   
 
  
 
 

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 4 of 80



 

TOWN COUNCIL MINUTES, TUESDAY, OCTOBER 6, 2015 
      Page 2 of 10  

 

 
10/06/2015 
 

2. CONSENT AGENDA  
 

a. Invoice from Goren, Cherof, Doody & Ezrol, P.A. 
 

b. Minutes: April 21, 2015 
c. Minutes: August 18, 2015 
d. Minutes: September 1, 2015 
e. Minutes  September 15, 2015 
f. Approval of Water Utilities Connection Only –  

Jumas Properties, LLC – 15591 40th Street North 
 

MOTION:  Vice Mayor Jarriel requested that Item 2.f be removed from the Consent Agenda, 
and added as Item 10.c. 
 
 Following discussion Councilman   Liang made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda.  The 
motion was Seconded by Councilman Goltzene.  The motion passed, 4/0.   
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
Marge Herzog – A Road 
Announced upcoming program at the Landowners Association Meeting and invited all to 
attend. 
 
Dennis Lipp – North Road 
Voiced displeasure on attempt to discredit management by Councilman Rockett. 
 
Reva Harris – 161st Terrace North 
Related her concerns about certain property owners blocking her ability to access her 
property on West A Road. 
  
Frank Schiola – Marcella Boulevard  
Complained about the lack of an American Flag at the Town Hall, and pointed out that the 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves is the only municipality in Palm Beach County that does not 
have a flag.  
 
Vice Mayor Jarriel advised that this matter is being addressed by the Town Manager.  
 
Councilman Jim Rockett entered the meeting at 7:07 PM 
 
Bill Louda – E Road  
Announced that he would be leaving the Town Council meeting before discussion begins on 
management services.  
 
Tim Harts-Wood – Timberlane Place 
Expressed his disappointment that Council continues to question management’s contract 
even though it recently renewed the services contract. 
 

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 5 of 80



 

TOWN COUNCIL MINUTES, TUESDAY, OCTOBER 6, 2015 
      Page 3 of 10  

 

 
10/06/2015 
 

4.  PRESENTATIONS – NONE 
 

5.  COMMITTEE REPORTS - NONE 
 

6. ORDINANCES 
 

7. RESOLUTIONS  
 

a. Resolution No. 2015- 32 - Muncipal Election 2016 & SOE Agreement 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, CONFIRMING  THE DATE, TIME AND 
PLACE TO QUALIFY AND FILE FOR THE OFFICE OF TOWN COUNCIL 
MEMBER FOR SEATS TWO (2) AND FOUR (4), ADOPTED THROUGH 
ORDINANCE 2015-04, PRIOR TO THE MUNICIPAL GENERAL  ELECTION  
TO  BE HELD ON TUESDAY, MARCH 15, 2016, PURSUANT TO THE TOWN 
CHARTER AND CHAPTERS 97 - 106, FLORIDA STATUTES; THE ELECTION 
FILING PERIOD OPENS PROMPTLY AT 12:00 NOON ON NOVEMBER 3, 2015 
AND CLOSES PROMPTLY AT 12:00 NOON ON NOVEMBER 10, 2015; 
SETTING FILING FEES; AUTHORIZING THE TOWN CLERK TO APPOINT 
ELECTION BOARDS FOR ELECTION PRECINCT 6094; AUTHORIZING THE 
SUPERVISOR OF ELECTIONS TO CONDUCT THE TOWN ELECTION AND 
APPROVING THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE TOWN AND THE PALM 
BEACH COUNTY SUPERVISOR OF ELECTIONS FOR ELECTION 
SERVICES; PROVIDING FOR CANVASSING AND CERTIFYING RESULTS 
OF THE ELECTION; AUTHORIZING THE TOWN CLERK OR DESIGNEE TO 
HANDLE CERTAIN ELECTION MATTERS; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT, 
SEVERABILITY, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo explained the new language in Resolution with respect to the 
Presidential Preference Primary by highlighting changes from prior year resolutions as 
follows:   
 

 Early voting will be included and Town will not be opting out as a result of the 
Presidential Preference.   

 Those early voting locations will be established by PBC Supervisor of Elections.   
 PBC Canvassing Board will serve as the Town’s Canvassing Board, as they are 

required by law to canvass state and federal elections.  
 Town will not be required to attend the audit, or be in attendance at SOE facility 

on the night of the election.   
 Town Clerk to attend the logistics test.    

 
Following a lengthy discussion with respect to the early voting process, and the role of 
the Town’s Canvassing Board, Councilman Liang Moved, and Seconded by Vice Mayor 
Jarriel to adopt Resolution No. 2015-32 as read.  The vote on the motion was unanimous, 
5/0.   
 

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 6 of 80



 

TOWN COUNCIL MINUTES, TUESDAY, OCTOBER 6, 2015 
      Page 4 of 10  

 

 
10/06/2015 
 

b.  Resolution No. 2015-33 – Quit Claim Deed – Re:  South B Road  
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, ACCEPTING THE QUIT CLAIM DEED 
FROM THE LOXAHATCHEE GROVES WATER CONTROL DISTRICT FOR A 
PORTION OF SOUTH “B” ROAD AS DESCRIBED HEREIN; PROVIDING 
AUTHORIZATION FOR THE RECORDING OF THE QUIT CLAIM DEED AND 
TO TAKE ALL ACTION NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE THE INTENT OF 
THIS RESOLUTION; AND PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT, SEVERABILITY, 
AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
Councilman Goltzene announced that he would not be participating and voting on this 
matter as he has a business relationship with the developers of this project. 
 
Councilman Liang Moved, and Seconded by Vice Mayor Jarriel to adopt Resolution No. 
2015-33 as read. 
  
Jo Siciliano – B Road 
Requested that the Town Council consider reducing the road width to 18 feet as that 
would provide ample space for the necessary swale as the current canal maintenance 
easement, canal and road are currently 75 feet rather than the 60 foot easement originally 
granted the LGWCD.   
  
The vote on the motion to adopt Resolution No. 2015-33 was unanimously adopted,4/0 
with Councilman Goltzene abstaining from voting on this matter. 
  

c. Resolution No. 2015-34 – Opposing GL Homes Land Use Change 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, OPPOSING GL HOMES’ REQUEST FOR A LAND USE 
CHANGE TO ITS 4,900 ACRE PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED WEST OF THE 
ACREAGE; PROVIDING FOR DISTRIBUTION OF THIS RESOLUTION; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Town Manager advised Town Council on the topic that was considered at the recent meeting 
held at Village of Royal Palm Beach with respect to GL Homes Land Use Change, and the 
Resolution proposed was presented for consideration.   
 
Motion:  Vice Mayor Jarriel Moved, and Seconded by Councilman Goltzene to adopt the 
Resolution.  During discussion, Mayor Browning advised the size of this development would 
expansion of the area’s road systems. 
  
Dennis Lipp – North Road 
Requested that copies of the Resolution also be send to Mr. Lorenzo DeGamo,  Palm Beach 
County Planning Agency, as there will be two hearings before the Palm Beach County 
Planning & Zoning Board.  He also pointed out that Jupiter and Tequesta are working 

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 7 of 80



 

TOWN COUNCIL MINUTES, TUESDAY, OCTOBER 6, 2015 
      Page 5 of 10  

 

 
10/06/2015 
 

together to make US 1 through their Towns two lanes, and feels the Town should use this as 
a model in an attempt to keep Okeechobee Boulevard within the Town limits a two lane road. 
 
Bill Louda – E Road 
Volunteered to personally deliver a copy of the Resolution to Commissioner McKinley at 
their upcoming meeting on October 14. 
 

The vote on the motion was unanimous, 5/0.  

8. MANAGER’S REPORT – Town Manager Underwood 
 

a. Agenda Item Report (AIR) - Updates on various activities and issues concerning the 
Town. 
 
Town Manager Underwood advised the Town Council that the Town Attorney’s 
extension expires on August 15, 2015, and requested Town Council direction on 
extending the Town Attorney services at this time.   
 
Councilman Goltzene expressed his desire to keep the Town’s legal counsel, Goren 
Cherof Doody & Ezrol.  He asked the Town Attorney about his willingness to stay on 
as the Town’s Attorney.   
 
Upon question from Mayor Browning, Town Attorney Cirullo advised that the firm 
will remain until such time as the Town selects new representation.  With respect to 
his firm’s reconsideration to stay, he advised that he will need to take it back to the 
firm for their decision.   
 
Councilman Liang would like to see the extension through the end of the year.   
 
Motion:  Councilman Goltzene Moved, and Seconded by Vice Mayor Jarriel to have 
the Town’s counsel continue to perform legal functions until the Town selects new 
legal representation.  The vote on the motion was passed unanimously, 5/0. 
 
With respect to Goren Cherof Doody and Ezrol continuing their services to the Town, 
Mayor Browning stated that it would be necessary to ask the firm their position to 
reconsider staying, and would request the Council encourage them to remain as the 
Town’s legal representatives.    
 
Motion:  Councilman Goltzene Moved to ask GCD&E to continue to perform the 
legal function on behalf of the Town.  Councilman Liang Seconded the motion.    
Town Manager Underwood suggested that if the firm rescinds their letter of 
resignation, then staff can contact proposers advising that the Town is withdrawing its 
Request for Letters of Interest for municipal legal services.  
 
Town Manager also detailed the following activities since the last meeting: 

 Town Clerk Virginia Walton begins on October 13.  He advised that Ms. 
Walton is the current City Clerk at the Village of Palm Springs. 

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 8 of 80



 

TOWN COUNCIL MINUTES, TUESDAY, OCTOBER 6, 2015 
      Page 6 of 10  

 

 
10/06/2015 
 

 
 Prepared a letter to PBC Commissioner McKinley with respect to calming 

devises on Folsom Road. 
 

 Office of Inspector General has included Loxahatchee Groves in its 2016 
Fiscal Audit Plan. 

 
 Loxahatchee Groves is one of two municipalities in Palm Beach County with 

the lowest millage rates for the upcoming year. 
 

 Addressed both the PILOT and Contribution for the D Road improvements 
with Ms. Simmons, representing Big Dog.   

 
 Waiting the final surveys on 6th court north and met with Red Clover Nursery 

and they express support in favor to meet trail requirements if necessary. 
 

 Simmon & White is still working with cost differential and plan with respect 
to MINTO contribution for the traffic lights. 

 
 Working Group on the RV Trailers – New Horse season 

 
Underwood advised that the working group has come up with positive suggestions on 
how to handle the matter, and Attorney suggested the matter can be addressed 
adopting a zoning in progress on this matter.   
 
Motion:  Councilman Liang Moved, Seconded by Councilman Rockett to adopt a 
zoning in progress that will get steps in place, and propose changes in ULDG going 
into the future.   
 
Attorney Cirullo to provide a resolution to include the rules formulated by the Town 
Manager and the working group for town council consideration for RV and camping 
trailers used during the horse season at the next meeting.  Vice Mayor Jarriel stated 
that this would only be a temporary fix, and time frame will be provided by the Town 
Council.   
 
Frank Schiola – Marcella Boulevard 
Explained that this is a hot topic throughout the town.  Is against doing something 
without the ability of the public to attend the Manager’s meeting with the working 
group.  Vice Mayor Jarriel advised that the Manager reached out to residents for input 
in an attempt to bring forward a solution for Council consideration.    
 
Councilman Goltzene agreed with Vice Mayor Jarriel, but pointed out that the 
deplorable conditions that many folks that work in Town live in throughout the 
community year around that have nothing to do with the equestrian season.   
 
Keith Harris – C Road    

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 9 of 80



 

TOWN COUNCIL MINUTES, TUESDAY, OCTOBER 6, 2015 
      Page 7 of 10  

 

 
10/06/2015 
 

Any town action starts with a single step. Manager took steps to listen to a small 
group on their views.  Expressed his thanks to Vice Mayor Jarriel on this thoughts, 
and is confident that those against will have the opportunity to share their opinions.   
 
Jo Siciliano – B Road 
Felt that this policy would allow the generate revenues, and identify those not in 
compliance. 
 
Councilman Liang expressed his concern that the meetings of the Manager and 
residents should have been publically noticed.    
 
Mayor Browning explained that the Town Council’s committees are different than 
getting a group that has no power, no authority, and comes together only to provide 
the Manager with input. 
 
The vote on the motion to authorize the Town Attorney to draft a Resolution for 
consideration passed, 5/0.  
 

 Advised that culvert has failed under west C Road at Timberlane Place, and met with 
the residents, and LGWCD Administrator Yohe. Will will work with the LGWCD to 
come up with a solution to this matter.  

 
Councilman Goltzene asked if the Town would consider limiting the number of meetings 
for November and December. Requested that a Town Council meeting calendar be placed 
on the next Agenda for discussion and action.    

 
  

 RFP for public works services for mowing, hedging, grading, watering etc.  
Provided to OIG for comment and engineers for comments and the Town 
Attorney. 

 
 Property Appraiser reduced the value of $1.5 million through Value 

Adjustment Board with a total impact of $2100.00  
 

9. OLD BUSINESS – NONE 
 

10. NEW BUSINESS 
 
a. Approval of ILA for Temporary Emergency Maintenance Services Agreement with 

LGWCD – Emergency watering, hedging, signage replacement, and repair of Town 
Roads. 

 
Motion:  Vice Mayor Jarriel Moved, and Seconded by Councilman Liang to approve the 
ILA for Temporary Emergency Maintenance Services.  The vote on the motion passed, 
4/1.  Councilman Goltzene voted no on the motion. 
 

b. Approval of  ILA for Temporary Grading and Repair Services and Supply of  Base Rock 

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 10 of 80



 

TOWN COUNCIL MINUTES, TUESDAY, OCTOBER 6, 2015 
      Page 8 of 10  

 

 
10/06/2015 
 

and Asphalt Material for Town Roads with LGWCD 
 

Town Manager Underwood advised that cost per mile remains same,  but road material 
expenses will increase. 
 
Motion:  Vice Mayor Moved, and Seconded by Councilman Liang to approve the ILA for 
temporary grading and repair services, and supply of base rock and asphalt materials for 
Town Roads 
 
The vote on the motion passed, 5/0. 
 

c.  Approval of Water Utilities Connection Only – Jumas Properties, LLC  
 15591 40th Street North 
 
 Town Manager advised that Jumas Properties is requesting a water connection across 
north road at his expense.   
 
Motion:  Councilman Liang Moved, and Seconded by Vice Mayor Jarriel to approve the 
connection as requested.  The vote passed, 5/0.   
 

 
11. COUNCIL REPORTS 

 
Vice Mayor Ron Jarriel – 
 
1.  Discussion Relative to Draft Referendum Ballot Language – Town Charter Revision for 

Debt  
 
Vice Mayor Jarriel advised that he would like to see a Referendum Ballot question be 
included in the March election that would allow the Town to borrow money for road 
improvements. 
 
Councilman Rockett would like Town residents to retain the right to vote on each matter 
(identify the item).  He would not like to see that right taken from the citizens. a 
 
Councilman Liang agreed that specific projects must be identified for consideration by 
the Town’s citizens.  
 
Councilman Goltzene feels that a properly written referendum giving Town Council 
power to borrow a limited amount and structured on how it will be paid should be 
considered.  Attorney Cirullo would recommend not making a decision tonight.  Advised 
that pledged reenue borrowing does not need to go through referendum. 
 
John Ryan – A Road 
Advised about state requirements on General Obligation bonds.   
 
Mayor Browning expressed his belief that improvements should be a joint effort on the 

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 11 of 80



 

TOWN COUNCIL MINUTES, TUESDAY, OCTOBER 6, 2015 
      Page 9 of 10  

 

 
10/06/2015 
 

part of the Town and residents alike. People on roads should vote for improvements or 
not, and the Town will supplement the expenditure.   
 
Council was advised that the deadline for ballot question is December 15, 2015.   
 
Motion:  Vice Mayor Jarriel requested that the Attorney draft an ordinance for 
consideration similar to the ballot language that was approved last year for the next 
meeting.  Councilman Goltzene Seconded the motion.  The vote on the motion failed, 2/3 
with Mayor Browning, and Councilmen Liang and Rockett voting against. 
 
Councilman Rockett requested Town Manager provide a management report outlining 
what steps Town can take with respect to debt.  
 

Councilman Goltzene excused himself from the Town Council meeting at 10:00 PM. 
 

2.  Discussion and Direction Relating to Intergovernmental Committee IGC 
 
Vice Mayor Jarriel requested direction from Town Council to reconvene the IGC 
meetings.   
Motion:  Vice Mayor Jarriel Moved, and Seconded by Councilman Rockett to reconvene 
at the direction of the Town Council.  The vote on the motion was 4/0.   

              
      Councilman Jim Rockett – 
 

1. Discussion Relative to Town Management Contract Review – Duties and Responsibility  
 
Councilman Rockett raised the following items relating to the Management Services 
Contract: 
 

 Recommended Town Manager evaluation be done each May to include a 
Financial Report (audit report), and Manager to provide an administrative report 
as well.   

 Would like all competitively bids for services to be reviewed by Financial 
Committee and Attorney prior to approval by Town Council.  

 Would like Manager to prepare an Punch list within 24 hours following a Town 
Council meeting for submission to Town Council. 
 

           Following a lengthy discussion, the Town Council generally agreed to schedule a meeting 
 for January to discuss and make necessary changes to the Town Management Services 
 Agreement, and requested the Town Manager to provide recommendations on changes to 
 the existing contract.   
 

2. Discussion of Reimbursement of Waste Pro Fine Assessment  
 

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 12 of 80



 

TOWN COUNCIL MINUTES, TUESDAY, OCTOBER 6, 2015 
      Page 10 of 10  

 

 
10/06/2015 
 

Councilman Rockett provided a brief review of the report he previously provided Town 
Council with respect to reimbursements of fines to Waste Pro Fines by management. 
Following discussion by Town Council, no action was taken on the matter. 
 

12. CLOSING COMMENTS 
a. Public  
b. Town Attorney 
c. Town Council Members 

 
13.   ADJOURNMENT 
 

The next regular Town Council Meeting is tentatively scheduled for October 20, 2015. 
 
 There being no further business to come before the Town Council, Mayor Browning 
adjourned the meeting at 10:30 PM.  
 
 
 
____________________________                                            ________________________ 
for Perla D. Underwood,       Mayor David Browning 
Acting Town Clerk 
 
 
 

 
These minutes were adopted at __________________________ meeting of Town Council. 

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 13 of 80



 
Regular Town Council Meeting Minutes, November 20, 2015                                                                                                        Page 1 of 8 

 

 

  Town of Loxahatchee Groves 
   Regular Town Council Meeting 

Tuesday, November 20, 2015 at 7:00 p.m. 
   

MINUTES 
1. OPENING 

 
a. Call to Order & Roll Call 

 
Mayor Browning called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. Present were Mayor David Browning, Vice 
Mayor Ronald Jarriel, and Council Members Tom Goltzené, Ryan Liang and Jim Rockett. Also present 
was Town Manager Bill Underwood, Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo, Jr. and Town Clerk Virginia 
Walton. 

 
b. Pledge of Allegiance & Invocation - Mayor Browning 

 
c. Approval of Agenda 

 
Vice Mayor Jarriel requested that items # 7a and #10d be removed from the agenda.   Vice Mayor Jarriel 
thought Item #7a matter should be left up to the State agencies, and felt the Council should direct the 
Manager to contact the State agencies and see what the Town could do to assist them. With regard to 
item #10b, reference was made to Wellington’s policy on RV’s and thought a lot of people did not want 
this policy.  The idea of a special hotline was brought up.  Town Manager Underwood requested that the 
items at least be discussed by Council and public comment, even if the items were removed or 
continued.   
 
Motion:  After further comments by Council, Vice Mayor Jarriel moved to approve the Agenda as 
revised to remove items #7a and #10d, but allow public comment. Councilman Goltzené seconded the 
motion. Motion passed 4-1, with Councilman Rockett dissenting. 
 
2. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

a. Minutes of May 5, 205 Council Meeting 
b. Minutes of September 29, 2015 Council Meeting 

 
Motion: Councilman Rockett moved to approve the Consent Agenda. Councilman Liang                 
seconded the motion. Motion passed 5 – 0. 
 
3.  PUBLIC COMMENTS  
 
 Virginia Standish welcomed the news that the I.G. was reviewing Loxahatchee Groves; thought 
the overlay of Okeechobee Blvd was dangerous and Council should stop and look more at this; and did 
not want D Road to become an urban highway. 

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 14 of 80



 
Regular Town Council Meeting Minutes, November 20, 2015                                                                                                        Page 2 of 8 

 

 
 Marge Herzog announced that the (LO?) meeting had a new date of October 29, 2015, and the 
Property Appraiser’s Office would be speaking about Agriculture Exemptions. 
 
 Bill Louda felt laws should be enforced with regard to animal cruelty and the RV issue.  Also, 
the Agriculture Reserve meeting was on October 26, 2015. 
 
 Simon Fernandez felt the previous meetings on the Okeechobee Blvd overlay had disregarded 
opinions of the public, citizens and landowners.  This plan was not pro-business, the data was old and 
the reference to “like businesses” was not very clear, and modular homes should be clarified.  
 
 Jo Siciliano stated the Council should move first to get horse trails and greenways, instead of 
trying to find space for them later.  The Council needs to get control of Okeechobee Blvd. 
 
 Valerie and Bob Solaas suggested a solution to the RV issue might be to consider an RV Park in 
a Commercial Area, possibly run by the Town, which was attempted and denied years ago. 
 
 John Ryan stated the RV issue and Manure issue hare well known problems; however, he was 
concerned about this resolution avoiding existing regulations.  We have ordinances in place and need to 
enforce them. 
 
 Dennis Lipp stated the RV and Manure issue would not be solved through the Special Magistrate 
because of the extended time frame between citation and code hearing.  The horse season would be over 
and the violation would be voided.  Maybe look at issuing a ticket with a substantial fine. 
 
 Bill Louda stated this resolution would at least do something to get a rid on the problems until a 
more definite ordinance could be adopted. 
 
4.    PRESENTATIONS 
Add: 
 a. Presentation of Plaque to Mayor Browning from Vice Mayor Jarriel 
 
 Vice Mayor Jarriel attended the Literacy Reading Day Luncheon on behalf of the Mayor and 
received a plaque thanking the Mayor for his participation in reading to the elementary school students. 
Vice Mayor Jarriel added that the Town thanked the Mayor for this involvement with the community. 
 
 a. B Road Improvements Update – Randy Wertepny, Keshavarz Associates 
 
 Mr. Wertepny stated they were on schedule to submit plans by November 4th and letters had 
gone out to residents for the 10 foot easements. Residents were advised that all fences would go back to 
their original locations after work was completed. Seminole speed tables would be 20 feet wide; 
however, he had been advised by the Town that if needed they could go to 22 feet wide.  The College 
Plan would include equestrian trails along the eastern boundary and the Collecting Canal bridge would 
be replaced.   
 
 Council wanted assurances that when the road was paved, it would extend ¼ mile into 
connecting roads, as was done with all other roads in the Town.  Mr. Wertepny responded that this was 

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 15 of 80



 
Regular Town Council Meeting Minutes, November 20, 2015                                                                                                        Page 3 of 8 

 

not in their scope of work, but could be added.  Manager Underwood stated the agreement was based on 
the budgeted amount for this project, and this would require a change order.  If the development would 
not pay for this change, then the Town would have to cover the cost.  Council also requested that the 
width be kept at 20 feet, rather than 22 feet, if possible.  Wider roads means more traffic.   
 
In response to Council questions about the catch basins, Mr. Wertepny responded they would be 5 – 6 
feet with 2 ½ feet covered.   In response to questions from Council about when the Bid would be ready, 
Mr. Wertepny responded that per schedule it would be in March 2015, contingent from comments from 
South Florida Water Management District (SFWMD).  
 
Public Comment on Item: 
 
Jo Siciliano stated the easterly property owners had already had enough land taken by the Water District 
and wanted to see the easements taken on the other side of the road. 
 
Dennis Lipp stated narrower roads were safer with less traffic and agreed with 20 feet instead of 22 feet. 
 
Motion: A motion to accept and file this report was made by Councilman Rockett and seconded by Vice 
Mayor Jarriel.  Motion passed 4 – 0, since Councilman Goltzené had left the room.   
 
5.   COMMITTEE REPORTS – None 
 
QUASI JUDICIAL 
 
6.   ORDINANCES  

 
a. ORDINANCE NO. 2015-07 (FIRST READING) 
(Okeechobee Blvd. Rural 5 Overlay to the Maps Element) 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 
FLORIDA, AMENDING THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 163.3184(3) FLORIDA 
STATUTES TO: (1) ADD MAP #FLU 1.10.1: OKEECHOBEE RURAL 5 OVERLAY TO THE 
MAPS ELEMENT; (2) AMEND TABLE 1-8 FUTURE LAND USES OF THE FUTURE LAND 
USE ELEMENT TO ADD THE OKEECHOBEE RURAL 5 (OR 5) LAND USE CATEGORY; 
AND (3) ADD OBJECTIVES 1.16, 1.17, 1.18 AND 1.19, INCLUDING SUPPORTIVE POLICIES, 
TO THE TEXT OF THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 Jim Fleishmann presented a power point presentation showing the proposed changes to the 
Loxahatchee Groves Land Use Map to include the Rural 5 Overlay and answered Council questions.  
The objective of this overlay was to control development, have intensity varied by uses, establish 
generic uses and to keep Okeechobee Blvd as two lanes, if possible.  Mr. Fleishmann stated this overlay 
project had been worked on for over a year and the presentation was based on comments from Staff and 
the public. Some of the public comments had stated that this was development driving and eliminated 

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 16 of 80



 
Regular Town Council Meeting Minutes, November 20, 2015                                                                                                        Page 4 of 8 

 

property owner concerns. The Local Planning Agency had recommended approval at their meeting on 
September 17, 2015. After first reading, the ordinance and proposal would be submitted to the 
Department of Economic Opportunity (DEO) for comments and then possible second reading of the 
ordinance at the December Council Meeting.  This ordinance had been advertised in the Palm Beach 
Post and the Town Crier and mailed to the 71 property owners whose lands front directly on 
Okeechobee or would need to access onto Okeechobee Blvd.  
 
 Council had many concerns about the uses that were prohibited in this plan, the FARs not 
including porches, as well as the section on Okeechobee Blvd, which should make no reference to the 
County being allowed to increase to four lanes.  Council also suggested in conjunction with this 
ordinance, the Town Landscaping Code might need to be reviewed.  
 
Public Comment on this item: 
 
 Dennis Lipp stated that the Planning & Zoning Board had many meetings on this, but direction 
for them was limited.  Someone should reach out personally to the 71 property owners. 
 
 Attorney Ryan McConnell stated he was here to speak on behalf of the NW Folsom property 
owners, who opposed the ordinance in its present form as being unfair and too restrictive. 
 
 Bill Louda stated the Town needed to address horse crossings, east/west connectivity and two 
lanes only for Okeechobee Blvd. 
 
 Simon Fernandez was against continuing the moratorium because this had gone on for more than 
a year and was holding things up and increasing the cost of everything. 
 
 Patricia Althouse stated she was an Okeechobee Blvd. property owners who had attended all the 
workshops and found this plan to be too restrictive, not creative and too detailed. 
 
 Keith Harris suggested restricting the businesses allowed to smaller businesses and not larger 
franchise type businesses.  
 
 Virginia Standish stated to remove this item from the agenda and then allow discussion was 
inappropriate. 
 
 It was consensus of Council that this ordinance was not ready to proceed. Town Attorney Cirullo 
asked for direction from Council.   
 
Motion: A motion to table this ordinance was made by Councilman Liang and seconded by Councilman 
Rockett.  Motion passed 5 – 0.  
 
Motion: A motion to extend the moratorium until June 30, 2016 was made by Councilman Goltzené and 
seconded by Vice Mayor Jarriel.  Motion passed 5 – 0.  
 
Motion: After further discussion by Council, a motion was made to have an Okeechobee Blvd. Overlay 
Workshop on December 5, 2015, beginning at 9:00 a.m. 
 

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 17 of 80



 
Regular Town Council Meeting Minutes, November 20, 2015                                                                                                        Page 5 of 8 

 

 7.  RESOLUTIONS   
 

a. RESOLUTION NO. 2015- 35 
(Zoning in progress for Recreational Vehicle Uses on Residentially-Zoned Properties)  

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 
FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING A PILOT PROGRAM TO REVIEW TEMPORARY 
RECREATIONAL VEHICLE USES ON RESIDENTIALLY-ZONED PROPERTIES WITHIN 
THE TOWN; PROVIDING FOR A ZONING IN PROGRESS CONSISTENT WITH THE 
PROVISIONS SET FORTH HEREIN TO PERMIT THE PILOT PROGRAM THROUGH MAY 1, 
2016, TO ALLOW TOWN MANAGEMENT AND PLANNING STAFF TO STUDY SUCH USES 
IN ORDER TO POTENTIALLY PROPOSE CHANGES TO THE TOWN’S UNIFIED LAND 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS TO REGULATE TEMPORARY RECREATIONAL 
VEHICLE USES WITHIN THE TOWN; PROVIDING FOR THE RULES AND REGULATIONS 
FOR TEMPORARY RECREATIONAL VEHICLE USES DURING THE PERIOD OF THE 
ZONING IN PROGRESS SET FORTH HEREIN; PROVIDING FOR APPLICATIONS; 
PROVIDING FOR FEES; PROVIDING FOR ENFORCEMENT; PROVIDING FOR REVIEW 
AND REPORT BY THE TOWN MANAGER; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT, SEVERABILITY, 
AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
This item was removed from the agenda. 
 
8.   MANAGER’S REPORT – Town Manager Underwood 

a. Agenda Item Report (AIR) - Updates on various activities and issues concerning the Town. 
 
Attachment - FY2016 Town Hall Holiday Schedule  

                 Simmons & White Traffic Signal Analysis 
 

b. Palm Beach County Sheriff’s Office (PBSO), District 15 Loxahatchee Groves 
Monthly Report: August 2015 (on file) 

 
 Regarding pilot programs, such as the resolution removed from the agenda, Attorney Cirullo 
advised the Council that there were legal opinions that state pilot programs were prohibited; however 
those opinions were under Appeal with the Supreme Court.    
 
 Council and Town Attorney discussed a possible alternate ordinance with a table of offenses and 
established fines.  Town Attorney Cirullo stated an Appeal for this type of offense would require County 
Small Claims Court.  A motion was made by Councilman Rockett to give direction to the Manager and 
Attorney to come back with an alternate program or ordinance to address the issues in Resolution No. 
2015-35.  Motion was seconded by Vice Mayor Jarriel.  Motion passed 4 – 1, with Council Goltzené 
dissenting.   
 
 There was also consensus of Council for this issue of substandard housing to be brought back to 
Council as a separate item.   

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 18 of 80



 
Regular Town Council Meeting Minutes, November 20, 2015                                                                                                        Page 6 of 8 

 

Manager Underwood updated the Council on the balance of outstanding items in his report. 
 

9.  OLD BUSINESS – NONE 
 
 

10. NEW BUSINESS 
 
a. FY2016 Town Council Meeting Schedule 

 
The new meeting schedule called for one meeting in November and December 2015, and one 
in March 2016 due to the Presidential Primary date.  A motion was made by Councilman 
Rockett to keep the second meeting in November 2015.  Motion died for lack of second.  A 
motion to accept the meeting schedule as presented was made by Councilman Goltzené and 
seconded by Vice Mayor Jarriel.  Motion passed 4 – 1, with Councilman Rockett dissenting.  
 

b. Work Authorization for Trail Grants 
 
After discussion, a motion to table this authorization until the Town had the trails was made 
by Councilman Liang and seconded by Councilman Rockett.  Motion passed 5 – 0.  

 
c. Discussion and Direction on Establishment of Policy relating to the acceptance of Quit Claim 

Deeds to the Town – Sean Rice and Rachel Lotero – 14721 Paradise Trail 
 
 Council felt this was a good start, but to do drainage we would need to own the whole road. 
 To relocate the driveway, the area the Town would give up had no trees that needed moving.  
 Town Attorney Cirullo recommended that title issues/descriptive easement be checked. 
 

d. Instruction and authorization for Town Manager, Town Attorney, and Workgroup to draft 
appropriate language to prohibit animal slaughtering  

 
e. Attendance at Florida League of Cities 55th Annual Legislative Conference – 

Town Council and Town Manager 
 
Motion: A motion was made by Vice Mayor Jarriel to encourage attendance at the FLC 
Annual Legislative Conference. The motion was seconded by Councilman Goltzené, and 
passed 5 – 0. Mayor Browning and Vice Mayor Jarriel stated they would be attending. 
 

f. Discussion and direction  on Culvert Replacement Policy – Postponed to November 6, 2015 
 
 

Motion: Councilman Goltzené moved to extend the meeting five more minutes for Council and then 
final public comments. Councilman Liang seconded the motion. Motion passed 5 – 0.  

 
 
 

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 19 of 80



 
Regular Town Council Meeting Minutes, November 20, 2015                                                                                                        Page 7 of 8 

 

11.  COUNCIL REPORTS 
 
a.  Vice Mayor Jarriel 

 
1. IGC Meeting Schedule 

 
 Vice Mayor Jarriel requested that the Council rotating appointments to this Committee be 
changed from 3 months to 6 months in order for more to be accomplished.  Councilman Rockett felt the 
schedule should take up where left off since he had not served for some time.   
 
 John Ryan requested this change be delayed until the ICG could review this at their next meeting 
and change the meeting date from October 26th to November 9th. Council consensus was to direct 
Manager to send a letter to the IBC requesting a meeting on October 26, 2015. 
 
Motion: A motion to have Vice Mayor Jarriel extend his appointment to this Committee for an 
additional 3 months to replace Mayor Browning for that time frame was made by Vice Mayor Jarriel 
and seconded by Councilman Goltzené. Motion passed 4 – 1, with Councilman Rockett dissenting.  

 
12.  CLOSING COMMENTS 

a. Public  
b. Town Attorney 
c. Town Council Members 

 
Final Public Comment: 
 
Keith Harris, Virginia Standish and John Ryan brought up the slaughtering, manure and other issues 
outlined in Resolution No. 2015-35, and made suggestions to be proactive in addressing these problems. 
 
Mayor Browning responded he understood the problems but it was frustrating to hear residents that were 
interviewed on Channel 12 say they knew about the problems but never said anything. Maybe an 
anonymous hotline should be looked at.  
 
Laura Denowski stated she had agreed to serve on the IGC and the October 26, 2015 date. 
 
Dennis Lipp stated the center property with the chain link fence on Folsom Road had an auto gate now 
and he had seen a truck waiting to enter.  He wanted code enforcement to check. Vice Mayor Jarriel 
added that the property belonged to a church. 
 
Councilman Rockett, Vice Mayor Jarriel, Councilman Liang, Councilman Goltzené and Mayor 
Browning all thanked everyone for coming tonight.   
 
Mayor Browning announced the next regular Town Council Meeting would be November 3, 2015, 
starting at 7:00 pm. 
 
 
 
 

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 20 of 80



 
Regular Town Council Meeting Minutes, November 20, 2015                                                                                                        Page 8 of 8 

 

13.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
 Hearing no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 10:53 p.m. 
 
 
              
Virginia Walton, Town Clerk     David Browning, Mayor 
 
 

 

These minutes were adopted at ____________________ meeting of Town Council. 

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 21 of 80



2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 22 of 80



2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 23 of 80



2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 24 of 80



2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 25 of 80



 

Town of Loxahatchee Groves, FLORIDA 

Town Council AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.d.  

MEETING DATE: 11/03/2015 

 
PREPARED BY:   William F. Underwood, II 

  

SUBJECT:  Copier Lease Extension  

  

1.     BACKGROUND/HISTORY  
  

  

Problem Statement:  The Town needs a copier, scanner and printer. 

 

Problem Solution:   Enter into a new equipment lease with the Town’s equipment provider, 

TGI Office Automation.  

Since the birth of the Town, TGI Office Automation has provided reliable, reasonable, and 

efficient equipment for copying, scanning, and printing Town documents.  The current 

equipment is beginning to have significant service issues.  The current lease is about to expire.  

The TGI lease includes all services and supplies, excepting paper supplies.  

 

  

2.    CURRENT ACTIVITY  

  

Staff has contacted TGI for a lease renewal for new equipment.  We have worked to provide 

another four year lease that again includes all services and supplies, excepting paper supplies.  

 

  

3.    ATTACHMENTS  
Lease agreement with TGI Office Automation. 

  

4.    FINANCIAL IMPACT  
  

  Monthly lease is $299 per month.  

  

5.    RECOMMENDED ACTION  
  

  Motion to authorize execution of the TGI Office Automation lease. 

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 26 of 80



2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 27 of 80



2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 28 of 80



2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 29 of 80



2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 30 of 80



2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 31 of 80



2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 32 of 80



2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 33 of 80



 

Town of Loxahatchee Groves, FLORIDA 
Town Council AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.e.  

MEETING DATE: 11/03/2015 

 
PREPARED BY:   William F. Underwood, II 

  
SUBJECT:  FY 2015 End of Year Budget Amendment  
  
1.  BACKGROUND/HISTORY  
  

  

Problem Statement:  The Town Council needs to reallocate its Fiscal Year 2015 budget 
appropriation requests. 
 
Problem Solution:   Provide the Council with a reallocated Fiscal Year 2015 budget 
amendment. 

Annually, the Council establishes a budget appropriation and estimated revenues to meet the 
needs of its citizens.  The Council periodically amends its operating budgets for the Town in all 
of its funds (General Fund, Transportation Fund, Capital Improvement Fund, and Solid Waste 
Fund). 
 

  
2.  CURRENT ACTIVITY  

  
Staff continually reviews both revenue and expenditures of the Town to monitor that revenues 
are within estimates and appropriations provide sufficient funds to match expenditures. 

  
3.  ATTACHMENTS  
Resolution Amending the Fiscal Year 2015 Annual Budget 
  
4.  FINANCIAL IMPACT  
  

  
This amendment reduces Town-wide appropriations by $2,760,234 from $5,350,949 to 
$2,590,715.  

  
5.  RECOMMENDED ACTION  
  
  Motion to approve Resolution amending the Fiscal Year 2015 Annual Budget 

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 34 of 80



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-36 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, ADOPTING A BUDGET 
AMENDMENT FOR THE TOWN’S BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 
BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2014 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2015; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVRABILITY, CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 166.241(4), Florida Statutes, the Town may amend its 

adopted budget for the Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2014 and ending September 30, 2015, at 

any time within a fiscal year, or within 60 days following the end of the fiscal year; and 

 WHEREAS, the Town Management has concluded a review of the budget and 

expenditures during the Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2014 and ending September 30, 2015, 

and is recommending amendments to the Town’s budget as set forth in  Exhibit “A” hereto. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA: 

 Section 1. Each “WHEREAS” clause set forth above is true and correct and herein 

incorporated by this reference. 

 Section 2. The Town’s adopted budget for the Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2014 

and ending September 30, 2015, is hereby amended a set forth in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto 

and expressly made a part hereof. 

 Section 3. If any clause, section, or other part of this Resolution shall be held by any 

court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, such unconstitutional or invalid 

part shall be considered as eliminated and shall in no way affect the validity of the remaining 

portions of this Resolution.  

 Section 4. All resolutions or parts of resolution in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed. 

 Section 5. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage and 

adoption. 

 

 

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 35 of 80



Resolution No. 2015‐36 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 

FLORIDA, THIS 3RD DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2015. 

 

 

       TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 

ATTEST:      FLORIDA 

 
________________________   ____________________________________ 
Virginia Walton, Town Clerk    Mayor David Browning 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Vice Mayor Ron Jarriel 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Tom Goltzené 
 
       ____________________________________ 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:  Council Member Ryan Liang 
 
_______________________________  ____________________________________ 
Office of the Town Attorney    Council Member Jim Rockett 

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 36 of 80



FY14-15 FY14-15 FY14-15

ADOPTED CHANGE AMENDED

BUDGET BUDGET

Account Number

001-311-100-000 AD VALOREM TAXES @ 1.2000 230,431          (1,076) 229,355          

TAXES SUBTOTAL 230,431          (1,076) 229,355          

001-314-100-000 ELECTRIC UTILITY TAX          223,000          32,094 255,094          

001-315-100-000 COMMUNICATION SERVICES TAX    92,300            7,660 99,960            

001-316-200-000 COUNTY OCCUPATIONAL LICENSES  6,500              1,200 7,700              

TAXES SUBTOTAL 321,800          40,954 362,754          

001-323-100-000 FPL FRANCHISE FEE             191,500          17,165 208,665          

001-323-125-000 HAULER LICENSING FEE 1,525              -                     1,525              

001-323-300-000 PBC WATER UTILITY FRANCHISE FEE 6,500              -                     6,500              

001-329-100-000 PLANNING & ZONING PERMIT 8,700              -                     8,700              

PERMITS, FRANCHISE FEES & SPECIAL SUBTOTAL 208,225          17,165 225,390          

001-335-120-000 STATE REVENUE SHARING         89,689            (900) 88,789            

001-335-180-000 HALF CENT SALES TAX           251,975          (2,000) 249,975          

INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE SUBTOTAL 341,664          (2,900) 338,764          

001-341-000-000 GENERAL GOVERNMENT CHARGES     4,000              -                     4,000              

001-343-349-000 COST RECOVERY FEES 80,000            -                     80,000            

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 84,000            -                     84,000            

001-351-100-000 COURT FINES -                     -                     -                     

001-354-100-000 CODE ENFORCEMENT FINES 6,400              610 7,010              

JUDGEMENTS, FINES & FORFEITS SUBTOTAL 6,400              610 7,010              

001-361-100-000 INTEREST                      245                 (195) 50                   

001-369-000-000 OTHER MISC INCOME             200                 12,800 13,000            

OTHER MISC. REVENUE SUBTOTAL 445                 12,605 13,050            

001-381-305-000 INTER-FUND TRANSFER IN CIP -                     -                     -                     

001-385-100-000 TRANSFER FROM SANITATION FUND 1,000,000       -                     1,000,000       

001-399-000-000 TRANSFER FROM  FUND BALANCE -                     -                     -                     

OTHER NON-OPERATING SOURCES TOTAL 1,000,000       -                     1,000,000       

GRAND TOTAL REVENUE 2,192,965       67,358           2,260,323       

MISCELLANEOUS

TAXES

GENERAL FUND:

Fiscal Year 2014-15

ESTIMATED REVENUES

APPROPRIATIONS

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 37 of 80



FY14-15 FY14-15 FY14-15

ADOPTED CHANGE AMENDED

BUDGET BUDGET

Account Number

GENERAL FUND:

Fiscal Year 2014-15

ESTIMATED REVENUES

001-511-310-000 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 2,650              1,963              4,613              

001-511-400-000 TRAVEL 3,000              (3,000)             -                     

001-511-490-000  POSTAGE & FREIGHT - (Was legal advertising) -                     -                     -                     

001-511-492-000 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES      3,300              (75)                   3,225              

001-511-499-000 OTHER CURRENT CHARGES - New Town Counsel Compensaton 30,000            -                     30,000            

001-511-500-000 EDUCATION AND TRAINING        1,100              (1,050)             50                   

001-511-510-000 OFFICE SUPPLIES               400                 (10)                   390                 

001-511-520-000 OPERATING SUPPLIES            800                 10                   810                 

001-511-540-000 BOOKS, PUBLICATIONS AND DUES   3,435              525                 3,960              

001-511-820-000 SPECIAL EVENTS/CONTRIBUTIONS 10,550            300                 10,850            

 LEGISLATIVE  TOTAL    55,235            (1,337)             53,898            

001-512-340-000  OTHER SERVICES 269,653          -                     269,653          

001-512-400-000 TRAVEL 1,500              (500)                 1,000              

001-512-420-000 POSTAGE & FREIGHT                      1,000              1,000              

001-512-490-000  LEGAL ADVERTISING - (New) 500                 (490)                 10                   

001-512-492-000 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES      944                 -                     944                 

001-512-493-000  ELECTION EXPENSE 23,010            (1,700)             21,310            

001-512-510-000 OFFICE SUPPLIES               32,000            2,200              34,200            

 001-512-540-000 BOOKS, PUBLICATIONS AND DUES   570                 -                     570                 

 EXECUTIVE TOTAL 329,177          (490)                 328,687          

001-513-320-000 ACCOUNTING AND AUDITING 18,000            -                     18,000            

001-513-470-000 PRINTING AND BINDING          1,751              -                     1,751              

001-513-490-000 LEGAL ADVERTISING             2,000              (1,800)             200                 

001-513-491-000 COMPUTER SERVICES 11,919            (6,000)             5,919              

FINANICAL AND ADMINSTRATIVE TOTAL 33,670            (5,600)             25,870            

001-514-310-000 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES         90,000            -                     90,000            

 LEGAL SERVICES TOTAL 90,000            -                     90,000            

001-515-310-000 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES    77,150            10,800            87,950            

001-515-340-000 OTHER SERVICES 70,702            10,000            80,702            

001-515-343-000 PLANNING & ZONING CONTRACT    20,000            -                     20,000            

001-515-349-000 COST RECOVERY EXPENDITURES 85,000            10,800            95,800            

001-515-490-000 LEGAL ADVERTISING - (New) 10,000            -                     10,000            

COMPREHENSIVE PLANNING AND ZONING TOTAL  262,852          -                     294,452          

LEGAL COUNSEL

FINANICAL AND ADMINSTRATIVE

EXECUTIVE

LEGISLATIVE       

 PLANNING & ZONING

APPROPRIATIONS

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 38 of 80



FY14-15 FY14-15 FY14-15

ADOPTED CHANGE AMENDED

BUDGET BUDGET

Account Number

GENERAL FUND:

Fiscal Year 2014-15

ESTIMATED REVENUES
001-519-315-000 SPECIAL MAGISTRATE            7,000              60                   7,060              

001-519-340-000 OTHER SERVICES 2,000              410                 2,410              

001-519-354-000 CODE COMPLIANCE 36,000            (11,000)          25,000            

001-519-410-000 COMMUNICATION SERVICES 8,100              800                 8,900              

001-519-420-000 UTILITIES 2,400              610                 3,010              

001-519-440-000 RENTALS AND LEASES            20,783            (783)                 20,000            

001-519-450-000 INSURANCE                     22,000            -                     22,000            

001-519-460-000 R & M BUILDINGS                     18,100            (1,100)             17,000            

001-519-490-000 COMPUTER EQUIP SOFTWARE & HARDWARE REPAIR 5,500              (2,700)             2,800              

001-519-491-000 COMPUTER SERVICES 33,292            (4,700)             28,592            

001-519-492-000 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES -                     150                 150                 

001-519-494-000 INSPECTOR GENERAL OFFICE FEE 5,280              (2,740)             2,540              

001-519-610-000 LAND ACQUISITION 27,500            -                     27,500            

001-519-620-000 BUILDINGS 483,010          4,300              487,310          

001-519-820-000  LOXAHATCHEE GROVES CERT 2,000              (1,400)             600                 

001-519-900-000 TRANSFER TO TRANSPORTATION FUND -                     -                     -                     

001-519-910-000 TRANSFER TO SANITATION FUND -                     -                     -                     

001-519-920-000 TRANSFER TO CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND -                     40,000            40,000            

001-519-990-000 CONTINGENCY                   454,482          30,406            484,888          

001-519-998-000 TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND-FUND BALANCE -                     -                     -                     

OTHER GENERAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES TOTAL 1,127,447       52,313            1,179,760       

001-521-341-000 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES-PBSO        283,084          472 283,556          

001-521-342-000 CONTRACTUAL-ADDL PBSO           10,500            (7,400) 3,100              

LAW ENFORCEMENT TOTAL           293,584          (6,928)             286,656          

001-539-340-000 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES         -                     -                     -                     

001-539-310-000 OTHER SERVICES 1,000              -                     1,000              

 PUBLIC WORKS  TOTAL          1,000              0 1,000              

GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,192,965       67,358            2,260,323       

PUBLIC WORKS

OTHER GENERAL GOVERNMENT

LAW ENFORCEMENT

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 39 of 80



FY14-15 FY14-15 FY14-15

ADOPTED CHANGE AMENDED

BUDGET BUDGET

Account Number

305-363-990-000 CONTRIBUTION FROM GENERAL FUND -                       -                 -                       

305-363-991-000 CONTRIBUTION FROM TRANSPORTATION FUND -                       -                 -                       

305-366-305-000 CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS 40,000             -                 40,000             

305-399-000-000 TRANSFER FROM FUND BALANCE 1,028,934        -                 1,028,934        

Total Revenue 1,068,934        -                 1,068,934        

305-519-600-000 "B" Road OGEM Improvements 40,000             -                 40,000             

305-541-610-000 SURVEYING TOWN ROADS -                       -                 -                       

305-541-620-000 OGEM Collecting Canal Road -                       -                 -                       

305-541-630-000 Okeechobee and D Road Traffic Light -                       -                 -                       

305-541-640-000 Town Roads OGEM Projects -                       -                 -                       

305-541-650-000 Trails -                       -                 -                       

305-541-652-000 D Road to Southern Boulevard -                       -                 -                       

305-541-654-000 Purchase Roads from LGWCD 28,934             -                 28,934             

305-581-001-000 Inter-fund Transfer Out Gen. Fund 1,000,000        -                 1,000,000        

Total Expenditure 1,068,934        -                 1,068,934        

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND

Fiscal Year 2014-15

ESTIMATED REVENUES

APPROPRIATIONS

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 40 of 80



FY14-15 FY14-15 FY14-15

ADOPTED CHANGE AMENDED

BUDGET BUDGET

Account Number

101-312-410-000 FIRST LOCAL OPTION FUEL TAX (6 CENT) 250,858          7,750 258,608          

101-312-420-000 SECOND LOCAL OPTION FUEL (5 CENT) 117,768          3,750              121,518          

101-363-990-000 CONTRIBUTION FROM GENERAL FUND -                     -                     

101-399-000-000 TRANSFER FROM  FUND BALANCE (6 CT) -                     -                     -                     

Total Revenue 368,626          11,500            380,126          

101-541-467-000 TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS - 6 c 6,000              (1,380)            4,620              

101-541-468-000 TOWN ROADS MAINT. - 6 c 42,059            3,840              45,899            

101-541-469-000 ROAD MAINTENANCE DISTRICT - 6 c 93,738            -                     93,738            

101-541-631-000 ROAD AND STREETS - NEW CONSTRUCTION - 5 c     -                     -                     -                     

101-541-632-000 SPECIAL PROJECTS -                     -                     -                     

101-541-633-000 22nd ROAD DITCH           -                     -                     -                     

101-541-634-000 148th TERR BRIDGE(5)/CULVERT  -                     -                     -                     

101-541-920-000 TRANSFER TO CAPITAL PROJECTS -                     -                     -                     

101-541-990-000 TRANSFER TO FUND BALANCE (5 CT) 117,768          3,750              121,518          

101-541-996-000 TRANSFER TO FUND BALANCE (6 CT) 109,061          5,290              114,351          

Total Expenditure 368,626          11,500            380,126          

 APPROPRIATIONS

Transportation Fund

Fiscal Year 2014-15

ESTIMATED REVENUES

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 41 of 80



FY14-15 FY14-15 FY14-15

ADOPTED CHANGE AMENDED

BUDGET BUDGET

Account Number

405-325-205-000 SOLID WASTE ASSESSMENTS (1,260 units) 436,646         2,145         438,791        

405-325-206-000 DISCOUNT FEES (13,550)         -                 (13,550)         

405-343-120-000 SWA RECYCLING INCOME 6,700             (2,770)        3,930            

405-361-100-000 INTEREST 2,260             -                 2,260            

405-363-990-000 CONTRIBUTION FROM GENERAL FUND -                     -                 -                    

405-399-000-000 TRANSFER FROM FUND BALANCE 18,022           (5,111)        12,911          

Total Revenue 450,078         (5,736)        444,342        

405-534-345-000 CONTRACTUAL-WASTE OVERSIGHT          12,600           -             12,600          

405-534-346-000 PBC ADMINSTRATION FEE 1% 4,318             (136)           4,182            

405-534-420-000 POSTAGE & FREIGHT 1,110             (300)           810               

405-534-434-000 SOLID WASTE CONTRACTOR 428,450         (4,800)        423,650        

405-534-436-000 OTHER SANITATION SERVICES 3,100             -                 3,100            

405-534-490-000 LEGAL ADVERTISING 500                (500)           -                    

405-534-595-000 TOLG MANAGEMENT FEES -                     -             -                    

Total Expenditure 450,078         (5,736)        444,342        

Solid Waste Fund

Fiscal Year 2014-15

ESTIMATED REVENUES

APPROPRIATIONS

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 42 of 80



FY14-15 FY14-15 FY14-15

ADOPTED CHANGE AMENDED

BUDGET BUDGET

Fund #

001 GENERAL FUND 2,192,965              67,358                 2,260,323            

101 TRANSPORTATION FUND 368,626                 11,500                 380,126               

305 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND 1,068,934              -                           1,068,934            

405 SOLID WASTE FUND 450,078                 (5,736)                  444,342               

Total Estimated Revnue 4,080,603              73,122                 4,153,725            

001 GENERAL FUND 2,192,965              67,358                 2,260,323            

101 TRANSPORTATION FUND 368,626                 11,500                 380,126               

305 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND 1,068,934              -                           1,068,934            

405 SOLID WASTE FUND 450,078                 (5,736)                  444,342               

Total Appropriations 4,080,603              73,122                 4,153,725            

All Funds

Fiscal Year 2014-15

ESTIMATED REVENUES

APPROPRIATIONS

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 43 of 80



83% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

001-311-100-000 Ad Valorem Taxes 11,100                 229,107            -                     217,931                 11,176                      105%
Ad Valorem Taxes Subtotal 11,100                 229,107            -                     217,931                 11,176                      105%

001-314-100-000 Electric Utility Tax 23,394                 181,338            -                     203,000                 (21,662)                    89%
001-315-100-000 Communications Services 7,537                   69,266              -                     103,352                 (34,086)                    67%
001-316-200-000 County Occupational License 81                        6,003                -                     5,000                     1,003                        120%

Local Taxes Subtotal 31,013                 256,607            -                     311,352                 (54,745)                    82%

001-323-100-000 FPL Franchise Fee 18,008                 149,874            -                     185,000                 (35,126)                    81%
001-323-125-000 Haulers License Fee -                       1,525                -                     -                         1,525                        NA
001-323-300-000 PBC Water Utility Franchise 511                      5,334                -                     5,050                     284                           106%
001-329-100-000 Planning & Zoning Permit 1,100                   8,390                -                     2,000                     6,390                        419%

Permits, Franchise Fees & Special Subtotal 19,619                 165,123            -                     192,050                 (26,927)                    86%

001-335-120-000 State Revenue Sharing 6,694                   66,246              -                     90,689                   (24,443)                    73%
001-335-180-000 Half Cent Sales Tax 20,037                 190,429            -                     243,375                 (52,946)                    78%

Intergovernmentall Revenue Subtotal 26,731                 256,675            -                     334,064                 (77,389)                    77%

001-341-000-000 General Government Charges 480                      3,806                -                     4,000                     (195)                         95%
001-343-349-000 Cost Recovery Fees 2,292                   61,446              -                     60,000                   1,446                        102%

Charges for Services Subtotal 2,772                   65,252              -                     64,000                   1,252                        102%

001-351-100-000 Court Fines -                       -                   -                     -                         -                           
001-354-100-000 Code Enforcement Fines -                       6,409                -                     300                        6,109                        2136%

Code Enforcement Fines Subtotal -                       6,409                -                     300                        6,109                        2136%

001-361-100-000 Interest 5                          45                     -                     200                        (155)                         23%
001-369-000-000 Other Misc Income -                       150                   -                     1,000                     (850)                         15%

Other Misc Revenue Subtotal 5                          195                   -                     1,200                     (1,005)                      16%

001-381-305-000 Transfer from CIP Fund -                       -                   -                     1,000,000              (1,000,000)               0%
001-399-000-000 Transfer from Fund Balance* -                       -                   -                     (25,000)                  25,000                      0%

Other Non-operating Sources Subotal -                       -                   -                     975,000                 (975,000)                  0%

Grand Total Revenue 91,239                 979,367            -                     2,095,897              (1,116,530)               47%

 
 BUDGET VS ACTUAL
AS OF JULY 31, 2015

General Fund
Revenues

UMSG,LLC

Page 12 of 87
Corrected: 8/23/2015

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 44 of 80



83% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

001-511-310-000 Professional Services -                       2,488                -                     650                        (1,838)                      383%
001-511-400-000 Travel -                       -                   -                     3,000                     3,000                        0%
001-511-492-000 Other Operating Expenses -                       3,225                -                     1,500                     (1,725)                      215%
001-511-499-000 Other Current Charges - Council Reimbursement 2,500                   22,500              -                     30,000                   7,500                        75%
001-511-500-000 Education & Training -                       48                     -                     1,000                     952                           5%
001-511-510-000 Office Supplies 26                        388                   -                     300                        (88)                           129%
001-511-520-000 Operating Supplies -                       800                   -                     300                        (500)                         267%
001-511-540-000 Books, Publications & Subscriptions -                       3,378                -                     1,935                     (1,443)                      175%
001-511-820-000 Special Events/Contributions 2,186                   10,522              -                     10,000                   (522)                         105%

Legislative Total 4,712                   43,349              -                     48,685                   5,336                        89%

001-512-340-000 Other Services 22,471                 224,711            -                     269,653                 44,942                      83%
001-512-400-000 Travel 313                      898                   -                     1,500                     602                           60%
001-512-420-000 Postage & Freight - NEW 62                        416                   -                     1,000                     584                           42%
001-512-490-000 Legal Advertising 124                      (678)                 -                     500                        1,178                        -136%
001-512-492-000 Other Operating Expenses 259                      446                   -                     944                        498                           47%
001-512-493-000 Election Expense 1,032                   19,210              -                     8,010                     (11,200)                    240%
001-512-510-000 Office Supplies 4,850                   29,117              -                     12,000                   (17,117)                    243%
001-512-540-000 Books, Publications & Subscriptions -                       11                     -                     570                        559                           2%

Executive Total 29,111                 274,131            -                     294,177                 20,046                      93%

001-513-320-000 Accounting and Auditing 7,350                   16,700              -                     18,000                   1,300                        93%
001-513-470-000 Printing and Binding -                       -                   -                     1,751                     1,751                        0%
001-513-490-000 Legal Advertising -                       -                   -                     2,000                     2,000                        0%
001-513-491-000 Computer Services -                       5,883                -                     11,919                   6,036                        49%

Financial & Administrative Total 7,350                   22,583              -                     33,670                   11,087                      67%

001-514-310-000 Professional Services 7,763                   69,340              -                     90,000                   20,660                      77%
Legal Total 7,763                   69,340              -                     90,000                   20,660                      77%

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
 BUDGET VS ACTUAL
AS OF JULY 31, 2015

General Fund
Expenditures

UMSG,LLC

Page 13 of 87
Corrected: 8/23/2015

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 45 of 80



83% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

001-515-310-000 Professional Services 344                      84,475.01$       -                     40,000                   (44,475)                    211%
001-515-340-000 Other Services 6,725                   67,251.70$       -                     80,702                   13,450                      83%
001-515-343-000 Planning & Zoning Contract 2,744                   14,981.25$       -                     20,000                   5,019                        75%
001-515-349-000 Cost Recovery Expenditure 2,384                   78,817.76$       -                     60,000                   (18,818)                    131%
001-515-490-000 Legal Advertising - NEW -                       6,023.20$         -                     10,000                   3,977                        60%

Comprehensive Planning & Zoning Total 12,197                 251,549            -                     210,702                 (40,847)                    119%

001-519-315-000 Special Magistrate 1,203                   5,869                -                     16,000                   10,131                      37%
001-519-340-000 Other Services 350                      1,310                -                     3,000                     1,690                        44%
001-519-354-000 Code Compliance 788                      23,548              -                     36,000                   12,452                      65%
001-519-410-000 Communications Services 791                      5,261                -                     6,100                     839                           86%
001-519-420-000 Building Utilities 666                      1,524                -                     -                         (1,524)                      NA
001-519-440-000 Rentals and Leases 1,023                   17,847              -                     34,783                   16,936                      51%
001-519-450-000 Insurance -                       21,813              -                     18,000                   (3,813)                      121%
001-519-460-000 Repair & Maint - Building 655                      16,694              -                     2,100                     (14,594)                    795%
001-519-490-000 Computer Repair 147                      2,785                -                     5,500                     2,715                        51%
001-519-491-000 Computer Services 1,545                   27,983              -                     7,292                     (20,691)                    384%
001-519-492-000 Other Operating Expenses -                       207                   -                     -                         (207)                         NA
001-519-494-000 Inspector General Office -                       -                   -                     5,280                     5,280                        0%
001-519-610-000 Land Acquisition -                       27,414              27,000                   (414)                         102%
001-519-620-000 Chamber of Commerce Property -                       483,008            465,000                 (18,008)                    104%
001-519-820-000 Loxahatchee Groves CERT -                       375                   -                     2,000                     1,625                        19%
001-519-990-000 Contingency -                       -                   -                     15,524                   15,524                      0%
001-519-998-000 Transfer To Capital Projects -                       40,000              -                     480,500                 440,500                    8%

Other Governmental Services Total 7,167                   675,637            -                     1,124,079              448,442                    60%

001-521-341-000 Professional Services-PBSO 23,590                 235,903            -                     283,084                 47,181                      83%
001-521-342-000 Contractual-ADDL PBSO -                       3,066                -                     10,500                   7,434                        29%

Law Enforcement Total 23,590                 238,969            -                     293,584                 54,615                      81%

001-539-310-000 Other Services -                       -                   -                     -                         -                           
001-539-340-000 Professional Services -                       736                   -                     1,000                     264                           74%

Public Works Total -                       736                   -                     1,000                     264                           74%

Grand Total Expenditure 91,892                 1,576,296         -                     2,095,897              519,602                    75%

Net Revenue (652)                     (596,928)          -                     -                         

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
 BUDGET VS ACTUAL
AS OF JULY 31, 2015

General Fund
Expenditures

UMSG,LLC

Page 14 of 87
Corrected: 8/23/2015

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 46 of 80



83% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

101-312-410-000 1st Local Option Fuel Tax (1 to 6 cent) 22,866                 196,590            -                     250,858                 (54,268)                    78%
101-312-420-000 2nd Local Option Fuel Tax (1 to 5 cent) 10,603                 92,498              -                     117,768                 (25,270)                    79%
101-399-000-000 Transfer from Fund Balance -                       -                   -                     412,423                 (412,423)                  0%

Total Revenue 33,469                 289,088            -                     781,049                 (491,961)                  37%
Represents consumption of fund balance.  This is not true revenue by definition or reflected in GL in transactions

Account Number Account  Month to Date  Year to Date Encumbrance  Annual Budget  Annual Variance  % Used

101-539-340-000 Other Services -                       -                   
101-541-467-000 Traffic Control Signs (6 ct) Maint. -                       4,611                -                     10,000                   5,389                        46%
101-541-468-000 Non-District Roads (6 ct) Maint. -                       30,299              -                     102,059                 71,760                      30%
101-541-469-000 District Roads (6 ct) Maint. -                       -                   -                     93,738                   93,738                      0%
101-541-632-000 Special Projects (6 cent) -                       -                   -                     60,000                   60,000                      0%
101-541-920-000 Transfer to Capital Projects -                       -                   -                     515,252                 515,252                    0%

Total Expenditure -                       34,910              -                     781,049                 746,139                    4%

Net Revenue 33,469                 254,179            -                         

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
 BUDGET VS ACTUAL
AS OF JULY 31, 2015

Transportation Fund
Revenues

Transportation Fund
Expenditures

UMSG,LLC

Page 15 of 87
Corrected: 8/23/2015

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 47 of 80



83% Elapsed

Account Number Account  Month to Date  Year to Date Encumbrance  Annual Budget  Annual Variance  % Used
305-363-990-000 Transfer In From General Fund 40,000              -                     -                         40,000                      NA
305-363-991-000 Contributions from Transportation Fund -                       -                   -                     555,252                 (555,252)                  0%
305-399-000-000 Transfer from Fund Balance -                       -                   -                     1,000,000              (1,000,000)               0%

Total Revenue -                       40,000              -                     1,555,252              (1,515,252)               3%

Account Number Account  Month to Date  Year to Date Encumbrance  Annual Budget  Annual Variance  % Used

305-541-610-000 Surveying Town Roads -                       -                   -                     90,374                   90,374                      0%
305-541-630-000 Okeechobee and D Road Traffic Light -                       -                   -                     290,944                 290,944                    0%
305-541-640-000 Town Roads OGEM Projects -                       -                   -                     25,000                   25,000                      0%
305-541-650-000 Trails -                       -                   -                     120,000                 120,000                    0%
305-541-654-000 Purchase Roads from LGWCD 28,893                 28,893              -                     28,934                   41                             100%
305-581-001-000 Interfund Transfer Out To GF -                     -                 -                    1,000,000            1,000,000               0%

Total Expenditure 28,893                 28,893              -                     1,555,252              1,526,359                 2%

Net Revenue (28,893)                11,107              -                         

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
 BUDGET VS ACTUAL
AS OF JULY 31, 2015

Capital Improvement Program
Revenues

Capital Improvement Program
Expenditures

UMSG,LLC

Page 16 of 87
Corrected: 8/23/2015

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 48 of 80



83% Elapsed

Account Number Account  Month to Date  Year to Date Encumbrance  Annual Budget  Annual Variance  % Used

405-325-205-000 Solid Waste Assessments 18,520                 436,397            -                     431,846                 4,551                        101%
405-325-206-000 Discount Fees -                       (13,550)            -                     (11,660)                  (1,890)                      116%
405-343-120-000 SWA Recycling Income -                       2,991                -                     6,700                     (3,709)                      45%
405-361-100-000 Interest 5                          2,259                -                     -                         2,259                        NA
405-363-990-000 Contributions from General Fund -                       -                   -                     14,382                   (14,382)                    0%

Total Revenue 18,524                 428,097            -                     441,268                 (13,171)                    97%

Account Number Account  Month to Date  Year to Date Encumbrance  Annual Budget  Annual Variance  % Used

405-534-345-000 Contractual - Waste Over -                       12,548              -                     15,000                   2,453                        84%
405-534-346-000 PBC Administration Fee 1 150                      4,182                -                     4,318                     136                           97%
405-534-420-000 Postage & Freight 810                      810                   -                     300                        (510)                         270%
405-534-434-000 Solid Waste Contractor 49,413                 347,721            -                     410,150                 62,429                      85%
405-534-436-000 Other Sanitation Service -                       3,100                -                     11,000                   7,900                        28%
405-534-490-000 Legal Advertising -                       -                   -                     500                        500                           0%

Total Expenditure 50,373                 368,360            -                     441,268                 72,908                      83%

Net Revenue (31,848)                59,737              -                         

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
 BUDGET VS ACTUAL
AS OF JULY 31, 2015

Solid Waste Fund
Revenues

Note:  YTD Fines credited to Service Provider invoicing - $8000.00

UMSG,LLC

Page 17 of 87
Corrected: 8/23/2015

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 49 of 80



92% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

001-311-100-000 Ad Valorem Taxes 248                      229,355           -                     217,931                 11,424                      105%
Ad Valorem Taxes Subtotal 248                      229,355           -                     217,931                 11,424                      105%

001-314-100-000 Electric Utility Tax 25,350                 206,688           -                     203,000                 3,688                        102%
001-315-100-000 Communications Services 7,301                   76,566             -                     103,352                 (26,786)                    74%
001-316-200-000 County Occupational License 1,752                   7,755                -                     5,000                     2,755                        155%

Local Taxes Subtotal 34,403                 291,010           -                     311,352                 (20,342)                    93%

001-323-100-000 FPL Franchise Fee 20,515                 170,390           -                     185,000                 (14,610)                    92%
001-323-125-000 Haulers License Fee -                       1,525                -                     -                         1,525                        NA
001-323-300-000 PBC Water Utility Franchise 551                      5,885                -                     5,050                     835                           117%
001-329-100-000 Planning & Zoning Permit 602                      8,992                -                     2,000                     6,992                        450%

Permits, Franchise Fees & Special Subtotal 21,669                 186,792           -                     192,050                 (5,258)                       97%

001-335-120-000 State Revenue Sharing 9,095                   75,341             -                     90,689                   (15,348)                    83%
001-335-180-000 Half Cent Sales Tax 17,528                 207,957           -                     243,375                 (35,418)                    85%

Intergovernmentall Revenue Subtotal 26,623                 283,298           -                     334,064                 (50,766)                    85%

001-341-000-000 General Government Charges 320                      4,126                -                     4,000                     126                           103%
001-343-349-000 Cost Recovery Fees -                       79,923             -                     60,000                   19,923                      133%

Charges for Services Subtotal 320                      84,049             -                     64,000                   20,049                      131%

001-351-100-000 Court Fines -                       -                   -                     -                         -                            
001-354-100-000 Code Enforcement Fines -                       6,409                -                     300                        6,109                        2136%

Code Enforcement Fines Subtotal -                       6,409                -                     300                        6,109                        2136%

001-361-100-000 Interest 1                          46                     -                     200                        (154)                          23%
001-369-000-000 Other Misc Income 12,850                 13,000             -                     1,000                     12,000                      1300%

Other Misc Revenue Subtotal 12,851                 13,046             -                     1,200                     11,846                      1087%

001-381-305-000 Transfer from CIP Fund -                       -                   -                     1,000,000              (1,000,000)               0%
001-399-000-000 Transfer from Fund Balance* -                       -                   -                     (25,000)                  25,000                      0%

Other Non-operating Sources Subotal -                       -                   -                     975,000                 (975,000)                  0%

Grand Total Revenue 96,114                 1,093,958        -                     2,095,897              (1,001,939)               52%

 
 BUDGET VS ACTUAL

AS OF AUGUST 31, 2015

General Fund
Revenues

UMSG,LLC

Page 11 of 94
Corrected: 9/17/2015

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 50 of 80



92% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

001-511-310-000 Professional Services 650                      3,138                -                     650                        (2,488)                       483%
001-511-400-000 Travel -                       -                   -                     3,000                     3,000                        0%
001-511-492-000 Other Operating Expenses -                       3,225                -                     1,500                     (1,725)                       215%
001-511-499-000 Other Current Charges - Council Reimbursement 2,500                   25,000             -                     30,000                   5,000                        83%
001-511-500-000 Education & Training -                       48                     -                     1,000                     952                           5%
001-511-510-000 Office Supplies -                       388                   -                     300                        (88)                            129%
001-511-520-000 Operating Supplies -                       800                   -                     300                        (500)                          267%
001-511-540-000 Books, Publications & Subscriptions -                       3,378                -                     1,935                     (1,443)                       175%
001-511-820-000 Special Events/Contributions -                       10,522             -                     10,000                   (522)                          105%

Legislative Total 3,150                   46,499             -                     48,685                   2,186                        96%

001-512-340-000 Other Services 22,471                 247,182           -                     269,653                 22,471                      92%
001-512-400-000 Travel 62                        960                   -                     1,500                     540                           64%
001-512-420-000 Postage & Freight - NEW 7                          423                   -                     1,000                     577                           42%
001-512-490-000 Legal Advertising -                       (678)                 -                     500                        1,178                        -136%
001-512-492-000 Other Operating Expenses -                       446                   -                     944                        498                           47%
001-512-493-000 Election Expense 257                      19,467             -                     8,010                     (11,457)                    243%
001-512-510-000 Office Supplies 978                      30,094             -                     12,000                   (18,094)                    251%
001-512-540-000 Books, Publications & Subscriptions 370                      381                   -                     570                        189                           67%

Executive Total 24,144                 298,275           -                     294,177                 (4,098)                       101%

001-513-320-000 Accounting and Auditing -                       16,700             -                     18,000                   1,300                        93%
001-513-470-000 Printing and Binding -                       -                   -                     1,751                     1,751                        0%
001-513-490-000 Legal Advertising -                       -                   -                     2,000                     2,000                        0%
001-513-491-000 Computer Services -                       5,883                -                     11,919                   6,036                        49%

Financial & Administrative Total -                       22,583             -                     33,670                   11,087                      67%

001-514-310-000 Professional Services 6,881                   76,222             -                     90,000                   13,778                      85%
Legal Total 6,881                   76,222             -                     90,000                   13,778                      85%

 BUDGET VS ACTUAL
AS OF AUGUST 31, 2015

General Fund
Expenditures

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES

UMSG,LLC

Page 12 of 94
Corrected: 9/17/2015

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 51 of 80



92% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

001-515-310-000 Professional Services 1,166                   85,640.76        -                     40,000                   (45,641)                    214%
001-515-340-000 Other Services 6,725                   73,976.87        -                     80,702                   6,725                        92%
001-515-343-000 Planning & Zoning Contract 200                      15,181.25        -                     20,000                   4,819                        76%
001-515-349-000 Cost Recovery Expenditure 15,134                 90,014.72        -                     60,000                   (30,015)                    150%
001-515-490-000 Legal Advertising - NEW -                       6,023.20          -                     10,000                   3,977                        60%

Comprehensive Planning & Zoning Total 23,225                 270,837           -                     210,702                 (60,135)                    129%

001-519-315-000 Special Magistrate 1,185                   7,054                -                     16,000                   8,946                        44%
001-519-340-000 Other Services 615                      1,925                -                     3,000                     1,075                        64%
001-519-354-000 Code Compliance 1,215                   24,763             -                     36,000                   11,237                      69%
001-519-410-000 Communications Services 2,037                   7,297                -                     6,100                     (1,197)                       120%
001-519-420-000 Building Utilities 619                      2,144                -                     -                         (2,144)                       NA
001-519-440-000 Rentals and Leases 740                      18,587             -                     34,783                   16,196                      53%
001-519-450-000 Insurance -                       21,813             -                     18,000                   (3,813)                       121%
001-519-460-000 Repair & Maint - Building 75                        16,769             -                     2,100                     (14,669)                    799%
001-519-490-000 Computer Repair -                       2,785                -                     5,500                     2,715                        51%
001-519-491-000 Computer Services 147                      28,130             -                     7,292                     (20,838)                    386%
001-519-492-000 Other Operating Expenses -                       142                   -                     -                         (142)                          NA
001-519-494-000 Inspector General Office -                       -                   -                     5,280                     5,280                        0%
001-519-610-000 Land Acquisition -                       27,414             27,000                   (414)                          102%
001-519-620-000 Chamber of Commerce Property -                       483,008           465,000                 (18,008)                    104%
001-519-820-000 Loxahatchee Groves CERT 162                      537                   -                     2,000                     1,463                        27%
001-519-990-000 Contingency -                       -                   -                     15,524                   15,524                      0%
001-519-998-000 Transfer To Capital Projects -                       40,000             -                     480,500                 440,500                    8%

Other Governmental Services Total 6,795                   682,367           -                     1,124,079              441,712                    61%

001-521-341-000 Professional Services-PBSO 23,590                 259,494           -                     283,084                 23,590                      92%
001-521-342-000 Contractual-ADDL PBSO -                       3,066                -                     10,500                   7,434                        29%

Law Enforcement Total 23,590                 262,560           -                     293,584                 31,024                      89%

001-539-310-000 Other Services -                       -                   -                     -                         -                            
001-539-340-000 Professional Services -                       736                   -                     1,000                     264                           74%

Public Works Total -                       736                   -                     1,000                     264                           74%

Grand Total Expenditure 87,786                 1,660,079        -                     2,095,897              435,818                    79%

Net Revenue 8,328                   (566,121)          -                     -                         

AS OF AUGUST 31, 2015

General Fund
Expenditures

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
 BUDGET VS ACTUAL

UMSG,LLC

Page 13 of 94
Corrected: 9/17/2015

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 52 of 80



92% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

101-312-410-000 1st Local Option Fuel Tax (1 to 6 cent) 20,655                 217,245           -                     250,858                 (33,613)                    87%
101-312-420-000 2nd Local Option Fuel Tax (1 to 5 cent) 9,506                   102,004           -                     117,768                 (15,764)                    87%
101-399-000-000 Transfer from Fund Balance -                       -                   -                     412,423                 (412,423)                  0%

Total Revenue 30,161                 319,250           -                     781,049                 (461,799)                  41%
Represents consumption of fund balance.  This is not true revenue by definition or reflected in GL in transactions

Account Number Account  Month to Date  Year to Date Encumbrance  Annual Budget  Annual Variance  % Used

101-541-467-000 Traffic Control Signs (6 ct) Maint. -                       4,611                -                     10,000                   5,389                        46%
101-541-468-000 Non-District Roads (6 ct) Maint. -                       30,299             -                     102,059                 71,760                      30%
101-541-469-000 District Roads (6 ct) Maint. -                       -                   -                     93,738                   93,738                      0%
101-541-632-000 Special Projects (6 cent) -                       -                   -                     60,000                   60,000                      0%
101-541-920-000 Transfer to Capital Projects -                       -                   -                     515,252                 515,252                    0%

Total Expenditure -                       34,910             -                     781,049                 746,139                    4%

Net Revenue 30,161                 284,340           -                         

Transportation Fund
Revenues

Transportation Fund
Expenditures

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
 BUDGET VS ACTUAL

AS OF AUGUST 31, 2015

UMSG,LLC

Page 14 of 94
Corrected: 9/17/2015

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 53 of 80



92% Elapsed

Account Number Account  Month to Date  Year to Date Encumbrance  Annual Budget  Annual Variance  % Used
305-363-990-000 Transfer In From General Fund 40,000             -                     -                         40,000                      NA
305-363-991-000 Contributions from Transportation Fund -                       -                   -                     555,252                 (555,252)                  0%
305-399-000-000 Transfer from Fund Balance -                       -                   -                     1,000,000              (1,000,000)               0%

Total Revenue -                       40,000             -                     1,555,252              (1,515,252)               3%

Account Number Account  Month to Date  Year to Date Encumbrance  Annual Budget  Annual Variance  % Used

305-541-610-000 Surveying Town Roads -                       -                   -                     90,374                   90,374                      0%
305-541-630-000 Okeechobee and D Road Traffic Light -                       -                   -                     290,944                 290,944                    0%
305-541-640-000 Town Roads OGEM Projects -                       -                   -                     25,000                   25,000                      0%
305-541-650-000 Trails -                       -                   -                     120,000                 120,000                    0%
305-541-654-000 Purchase Roads from LGWCD -                       28,893             -                     28,934                   41                             100%
305-581-001-000 Interfund Transfer Out To GF -                     -                 -                    1,000,000            1,000,000               0%

Total Expenditure -                       28,893             -                     1,555,252              1,526,359                 2%

Net Revenue -                       11,107             -                         

AS OF AUGUST 31, 2015

Capital Improvement Program
Revenues

Capital Improvement Program
Expenditures

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
 BUDGET VS ACTUAL

UMSG,LLC

Page 15 of 94
Corrected: 9/17/2015

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 54 of 80



92% Elapsed

Account Number Account  Month to Date  Year to Date Encumbrance  Annual Budget  Annual Variance  % Used

405-325-205-000 Solid Waste Assessments 2,391                   438,788           -                     431,846                 6,942                        102%
405-325-206-000 Discount Fees -                       (13,550)            -                     (11,660)                  (1,890)                       116%
405-343-120-000 SWA Recycling Income 932                      3,923                -                     6,700                     (2,777)                       59%
405-361-100-000 Interest -                       2,259                -                     -                         2,259                        NA
405-363-990-000 Contributions from General Fund -                       -                   -                     14,382                   (14,382)                    0%

Total Revenue 3,323                   431,421           -                     441,268                 (9,847)                       98%

Account Number Account  Month to Date  Year to Date Encumbrance  Annual Budget  Annual Variance  % Used

405-534-345-000 Contractual - Waste Over -                       12,548             -                     15,000                   2,453                        84%
405-534-346-000 PBC Administration Fee 1 -                       4,182                -                     4,318                     136                           97%
405-534-420-000 Postage & Freight -                       810                   -                     300                        (510)                          270%
405-534-434-000 Solid Waste Contractor 37,913                 385,633           -                     410,150                 24,517                      94%
405-534-436-000 Other Sanitation Service -                       3,100                -                     11,000                   7,900                        28%
405-534-490-000 Legal Advertising -                       -                   -                     500                        500                           0%

Total Expenditure 37,913                 406,273           -                     441,268                 34,995                      92%

Net Revenue (34,589)                25,148             -                         

 BUDGET VS ACTUAL
AS OF AUGUST 31, 2015

Solid Waste Fund
Revenues

Note:  YTD Fines credited to Service Provider invoicing - $8000.00

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES

UMSG,LLC

Page 16 of 94
Corrected: 9/17/2015

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 55 of 80



100% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

001-311-100-000 Ad Valorem Taxes -                       229,355        -                  230,431                 (1,076)                       100%
Ad Valorem Taxes Subtotal -                     229,355      -                 230,431               (1,076)                     100%

001-314-100-000 Electric Utility Tax 26,405                 233,094        -                  223,000                 10,094                      105%
001-315-100-000 Communications Services 7,737                   84,304          -                  92,300                   (7,996)                       91%
001-316-200-000 County Occupational License 2,773                   10,528          -                  6,500                     4,028                        162%

Local Taxes Subtotal 36,916               327,926      -                 321,800               6,126                      102%

001-323-100-000 FPL Franchise Fee 20,887                 191,277        -                  191,500                 (223)                          100%
001-323-125-000 Haulers License Fee -                       1,525             -                  1,525                     -                            100%
001-323-300-000 PBC Water Utility Franchise 662                      6,547             -                  6,500                     47                             101%
001-329-100-000 Planning & Zoning Permit 620                      9,612             -                  8,700                     912                           110%

Permits, Franchise Fees & Special Subtotal 22,169               208,961      -                 208,225               736                         100%

001-335-120-000 State Revenue Sharing 6,694                   82,035          -                  89,689                   (7,654)                       91%
001-335-180-000 Half Cent Sales Tax 21,008                 228,965        -                  251,975                 (23,010)                    91%

Intergovernmentall Revenue Subtotal 27,702               311,000      -                 341,664               (30,664)                  91%

001-341-000-000 General Government Charges 535                      4,661             -                  4,000                     661                           117%
001-343-349-000 Cost Recovery Fees 3,436                   83,359          -                  80,000                   3,359                        104%

Charges for Services Subtotal 3,971                 88,019        -                 84,000                 4,019                      105%

001-351-100-000 Court Fines -                       -                -                 -                         -                            
001-354-100-000 Code Enforcement Fines 605                      7,014             -                  6,400                     614                           110%

Code Enforcement Fines Subtotal 605                    7,014           -                 6,400                   614                         110%

001-361-100-000 Interest 3                          50                  -                  245                        (195)                          20%
001-369-000-000 Other Misc Income -                       13,000          -                  200                        12,800                      6500%

Other Misc Revenue Subtotal 3                        13,050        -                 445                      12,605                    2933%

001-381-305-000 Transfer from CIP Fund -                     -              -                 1,000,000            (1,000,000)             0%
001-399-000-000 Transfer from Fund Balance* -                       -                -                  -                         -                          #DIV/0!

Other Non-operating Sources Subotal -                     -              -                 1,000,000            (1,000,000)             0%

Grand Total Revenue 91,366               1,185,324   -                 2,192,965            (1,007,641)             54%

BUDGET VS ACTUAL
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

General Fund
Revenues

UMSG,LLC

Page 13 of 102
Corrected: 10/21/2015

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 56 of 80



100% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

001-511-310-000 Professional Services 1,475                   4,613             -                  2,650                     (1,963)                       174%
001-511-400-000 Travel -                       -                -                  3,000                     3,000                        0%
001-511-492-000 Other Operating Expenses -                       3,225             -                  3,300                     75                             98%
001-511-499-000 Other Current Charges - Council Reimbursement 2,500                   27,500          -                  30,000                   2,500                        92%
001-511-500-000 Education & Training -                       48                  -                  1,100                     1,052                        4%
001-511-510-000 Office Supplies -                       388                -                  400                        12                             97%
001-511-520-000 Operating Supplies 10                        810                -                  800                        (10)                            101%
001-511-540-000 Books, Publications & Subscriptions 580                      3,958             -                  3,435                     (523)                          115%
001-511-820-000 Special Events/Contributions 264                      10,786          -                  10,550                   (236)                          102%

Legislative Total 4,829                 51,328        -                 55,235                 3,907                      93%

001-512-340-000 Other Services 22,471                 269,653        -                  269,653                 0                               100%
001-512-400-000 Travel -                       960                -                  1,500                     540                           64%
001-512-420-000 Postage & Freight - NEW 49                        472                -                  1,000                     528                           47%
001-512-490-000 Legal Advertising -                       (678)              -                  500                        1,178                        -136%
001-512-492-000 Other Operating Expenses -                       446                -                  944                        498                           47%
001-512-493-000 Election Expense (257)                     19,467          -                  23,010                   3,543                        85%
001-512-510-000 Office Supplies 954                      31,048          -                  32,000                   952                           97%
001-512-540-000 Books, Publications & Subscriptions -                       381                -                  570                        189                           67%

Executive Total 23,217               321,749      -                 329,177               7,428                      98%

001-513-320-000 Accounting and Auditing -                       16,700          -                  18,000                   1,300                        93%
001-513-470-000 Printing and Binding -                       -                -                  1,751                     1,751                        0%
001-513-490-000 Legal Advertising -                       -                -                  2,000                     2,000                        0%
001-513-491-000 Computer Services -                       5,883             -                  11,919                   6,036                        49%

Financial & Administrative Total -                     22,583        -                 33,670                 11,087                    67%

001-514-310-000 Professional Services 8,140                   84,362          -                  90,000                   5,638                        94%
Legal Total 8,140                 84,362        -                 90,000                 5,638                      94%

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
BUDGET VS ACTUAL

AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

General Fund
Expenditures

UMSG,LLC

Page 14 of 102
Corrected: 10/21/2015

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 57 of 80



100% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

001-515-310-000 Professional Services 1,670                   87,310.31     -                  77,150                   (10,160)                    113%
001-515-340-000 Other Services 6,725                   80,702.04     -                  70,702                   (10,000)                    114%
001-515-343-000 Planning & Zoning Contract 2,073                   17,254.20     -                  20,000                   2,746                        86%
001-515-349-000 Cost Recovery Expenditure 3,436                   93,450.22     -                  85,000                   (8,450)                       110%
001-515-490-000 Legal Advertising - NEW -                       6,023.20       -                  10,000                   3,977                        60%

Comprehensive Planning & Zoning Total 13,903               284,740      -                 262,852               (21,888)                  108%

001-519-315-000 Special Magistrate -                       7,054             -                  7,000                     (54)                            101%
001-519-340-000 Other Services 480                      2,405             -                  2,000                     (405)                          120%
001-519-354-000 Code Compliance -                       24,763          -                  36,000                   11,237                      69%
001-519-410-000 Communications Services 615                      8,442             -                  8,100                     (342)                          104%
001-519-420-000 Building Utilities 472                      2,616             -                  2,400                     (216)                          NA
001-519-440-000 Rentals and Leases 317                      18,904          -                  20,783                   1,879                        91%
001-519-450-000 Insurance -                       21,813          -                  22,000                   187                           99%
001-519-460-000 Repair & Maint - Building 191                      16,959          -                  18,100                   1,141                        94%
001-519-490-000 Computer Repair -                       2,785             -                  5,500                     2,715                        51%
001-519-491-000 Computer Services 147                      28,277          -                  33,292                   5,015                        85%
001-519-492-000 Other Operating Expenses -                       142                -                  -                         (142)                          NA
001-519-494-000 Inspector General Office 2,539                   2,539             -                  5,280                     2,741                        48%
001-519-610-000 Land Acquisition -                       27,414          27,500                   86                             100%
001-519-620-000 Chamber of Commerce Property 4,300                   487,308        483,010                 (4,298)                       101%
001-519-820-000 Loxahatchee Groves CERT -                       537                -                  2,000                     1,463                        27%
001-519-900-000 Transfer to Transportation Fund -                -                         -                            NA
001-519-920-000 Transfer To Capital Projects -                       -                -                  -                         -                            
001-519-990-000 Contingency -                       -                -                  454,482                 454,482                    0%
001-519-998-000 Transfer to Fund Balance

Other Governmental Services Total 9,060                 651,958      -                 1,127,447            475,489                  58%

001-521-341-000 Professional Services-PBSO 24,062                 283,556        -                  283,084                 (472)                          100%
001-521-342-000 Contractual-ADDL PBSO -                       3,066             -                  10,500                   7,434                        29%

Law Enforcement Total 24,062               286,622      -                 293,584               6,962                      98%

001-539-310-000 Other Services -                       -                -                  -                         -                            
001-539-340-000 Professional Services -                       736                -                  1,000                     264                           74%

Public Works Total -                     736              -                 1,000                   264                         74%

Grand Total Expenditure 83,212               1,704,078   -                 2,192,965            488,887                  78%

Net Revenue 8,154                 (518,754)     -                 -                       

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
BUDGET VS ACTUAL

AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

General Fund
Expenditures

UMSG,LLC

Page 15 of 102
Corrected: 10/21/2015

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 58 of 80



100% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

101-312-410-000 1st Local Option Fuel Tax (1 to 6 cent) 20,680                 237,925        -                  250,858                 (12,933)                    95%
101-312-420-000 2nd Local Option Fuel Tax (1 to 5 cent) 9,724                   111,728        -                  117,768                 (6,040)                       95%
101-399-000-000 Transfer from Fund Balance -                       -                -                  -                         -                            

Total Revenue 30,404               349,653      -                 368,626               (18,973)                  95%
Represents consumption of fund balance.  This is not true revenue by definition or reflected in GL in transactions

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

101-541-467-000 Traffic Control Signs (6 ct) Maint. -                       4,611             -                  6,000                     1,389                        77%
101-541-468-000 Non-District Roads (6 ct) Maint. 15,596                 45,895          -                  42,059                   (3,836)                       109%
101-541-469-000 District Roads (6 ct) Maint. 93,738                 93,738          -                  93,738                   -                            100%
101-541-632-000 Special Projects (6 cent) -                       -                -                  -                         -                            
101-541-920-000 Transfer to Capital Projects -                       -                -                  -                         -                            
101-541-990-000 Transfer to Fund Balance (5c) 117,768                 117,768                    0%
101-541-996-000 Transfer to Fund Balance (6c) 109061 109061 0%

Total Expenditure 109,334             144,244      -                 368,626               224,382                  39%

Net Revenue (78,930)              205,410      -                       

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
BUDGET VS ACTUAL

AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Transportation Fund
Revenues

Transportation Fund
Expenditures

UMSG,LLC

Page 16 of 102
Corrected: 10/21/2015

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 59 of 80



100% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used
305-363-990-000 Transfer In From General Fund -                       -                -                  -                         -                            NA
305-363-991-000 Contributions from Transportation Fund -                       -                -                  -                         -                            
305-366-305-000 Contributions and Donations 40,000          40,000                   
305-399-000-000 Transfer from Fund Balance -                       -                -                  1,028,934              (1,000,000)               0%

Total Revenue -                     40,000        -                 1,068,934            (1,000,000)             4%

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used
305-519-600-000 B Road OGEM Improvements 40,000                   
305-541-610-000 Surveying Town Roads -                       -                -                  -                         -                            
305-541-630-000 Okeechobee and D Road Traffic Light -                       -                -                  -                         -                            
305-541-640-000 Town Roads OGEM Projects -                       -                -                  -                         -                            
305-541-650-000 Trails -                       -                -                  -                         -                            
305-541-654-000 Purchase Roads from LGWCD -                       28,893          -                  28,934                   41                             100%
305-581-001-000 Interfund Transfer Out To GF -                     -              -                 1,000,000            1,000,000               0%

Total Expenditure -                     28,893        -                 1,068,934            1,000,041               3%

Net Revenue -                     11,107        -                       

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
BUDGET VS ACTUAL

AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Capital Improvement Program
Revenues

Capital Improvement Program
Expenditures

UMSG,LLC

Page 17 of 102
Corrected: 10/21/2015

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 60 of 80



100% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

405-325-205-000 Solid Waste Assessments -                       438,788        -                  436,646                 2,142                        100%
405-325-206-000 Discount Fees -                       (13,550)         -                  (13,550)                  0                               100%
405-343-120-000 SWA Recycling Income -                       3,923             -                  6,700                     (2,777)                       59%
405-361-100-000 Interest -                       2,259             -                  2,260                     (1)                              NA
405-363-990-000 Contributions from General Fund -                       -                -                  -                         -                            
405-399-000-000 Transfer from Fund Balance 18022

Total Revenue -                     431,421      -                 450,078               (18,657)                  96%

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

405-534-345-000 Contractual - Waste Over -                       12,548          -                  12,600                   53                             100%
405-534-346-000 PBC Administration Fee 1 -                       4,182             -                  4,318                     136                           97%
405-534-420-000 Postage & Freight -                       810                -                  1,110                     300                           73%
405-534-434-000 Solid Waste Contractor 34,513                 420,146        -                  428,450                 8,304                        98%
405-534-436-000 Other Sanitation Service -                       3,100             -                  3,100                     -                            100%
405-534-490-000 Legal Advertising -                       -                -                  500                        500                           0%

Total Expenditure 34,513               440,785      -                 450,078               9,293                      98%

Net Revenue (34,513)              (9,365)         -                       

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
BUDGET VS ACTUAL

AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Solid Waste Fund
Revenues

UMSG,LLC

Page 18 of 102
Corrected: 10/21/2015

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 61 of 80

Loxg finance
Cross-Out



 

 
 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-08 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, AMENDING ORDINANCES 2014-
08 AND 2015-05, THROUGH WHICH THE TOWN COUNCIL IMPOSED A 
MORATORIUM ON THE PROCESSING AND REVIEW OF 
APPLICATIONS FOR AMENDMENTS TO THE TOWN’S 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, INCLUDING FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
AMENDMENTS AND TEXT AMENDMENTS, RELATING TO 
COMMERCIAL LAND USES ON PROPERTIES FRONTING ON 
OKEECHOBEE BOULEVARD WITHIN THE CORPORATE 
BOUNDARIES OF THE TOWN UNTIL DECEMBER 31, 2015, TO EXTEND 
THE MORATORIUM UNTIL JUNE 30, 2016 TO ENABLE THE ADOPTION 
OF APPROPRIATE AMENDMENTS TO THE TOWN’S 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, on February 3, 2015, the Town Council adopted Ordinance 2014-08, which 

imposed a moratorium until May 31, 2015, on the receipt and processing of applications for Land 

Use Applications and Text Amendments to the Town’s Comprehensive Plan relating to commercial 

land uses on property fronting Okeechobee Boulevard to provide the Town with time to review the 

Comprehensive Plan; and,  

 WHEREAS, since the adoption of Ordinance 2014-08, Town Administration, the Town 

Planner, and the Town Planning and Zoning Board (Land Planning Agency (LPA)), have worked 

diligently on reviewing the Town’s Comprehensive Plan relating to Okeechobee; and,  

 WHEREAS, at its May 19, 2015, meeting, the Town Council received proposed 

amendments to the Town Comprehensive Plan relating to Okeechobee Boulevard, but required more 

time to evaluate amendment options and to complete the adoption process; and,  

 WHEREAS, on July 7, 2016, in order to provide more time for the Town’s Management 

and Planning Staff, as well as the Town’s Planning and Zoning Board and the community, more 

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 62 of 80



Ordinance No. 2015-08 

Page 2 of 4 
 

time to review these issues which are so vital and critical to the future of the Town, the Town 

Council enacted Ordinance 2015-05 to amend Ordinance 2014-08 to extend the moratorium to 

December 31, 2015; and,  

 WHEREAS, since July 2015, there have been several meetings of the Town’s Planning and 

Zoning Board to review development issues along Okeechobee Boulevard, and Town Management 

and Planning Staff have continued to review these important issues; and,  

 WHEREAS, at its October 20, 2015 meeting, the Town Council received revised proposed 

amendments to the Town Comprehensive Plan relating to Okeechobee Boulevard; however, the 

Town Council did not believe that such proposals warranted transmittal and adoption, and felt that 

additional direct input from the stakeholders in the process, including the property owners along 

Okeechobee Boulevard, was necessary in order to ensure a proper balance of permitted development 

along Okeechobee Boulevard with the vision of the Town to remain rural and avoid unnecessary 

expansion of Okeechobee Boulevard through the Town; and,  

 WHEREAS, as a result, more time is needed to continue to evaluate amendment options, 

including to provide for additional direct input from property owners along Okeechobee Boulevard, 

and to complete the adoption process, and a community workshop is scheduled for December 5, 

2015; and,  

 WHEREAS, the Town Council believes that it is in the best interest of the Town, and its 

residents, to extend the moratorium to provide additional time to review the Town’s Comprehensive 

Plan and for the adoption of amendments to the Plan, in order to enhance the Plan’s consistency with 

the Town’s historical conditions and vision of remaining a rural area.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, THAT: 

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 63 of 80



Ordinance No. 2015-08 

Page 3 of 4 
 

 Section 1. The foregoing "WHEREAS" clauses, as well as those in Ordinances 2014-08 

and 2015-05,  are hereby ratified and confirmed as being true and correct and are hereby made a 

specific part of this Ordinance upon adoption hereof. 

 Section 2. Moratorium Extended.   Section 4 of Ordinance 2014-08 and Section 2 of 

Ordinance 2015-05, are amended to extend the moratorium until June 30, 2016, to read as follows:   

Period of Moratorium.   The Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves 
herby declares that the moratorium shall be effective for the period through June 30, 
2016, unless otherwise modified by the Town Council by ordinance. 
 

 Section 3. Except as amended herein, the provisions of Ordinance 2014-08 remain in 

full force and affect. 

 Section 4. All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict herewith are repealed to the 

extent of such conflict. 

 Section 5. If any Section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be 

invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no way 

affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 

 Section 6.   This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its passage and 

adoption. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, ON FIRST READING, THIS ___ DAY OF 
____________________, 2015. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, ON SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING, THIS 
_____ DAY OF ____________________, 2015. 

 

 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 64 of 80



Ordinance No. 2015-08 

Page 4 of 4 
 

 FLORIDA 
    

 
ATTEST:      ____________________________________ 
       Mayor David Browning  
        
_____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
TOWN CLERK     Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel    
    
       ____________________________________ 
       Council Member 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:   
       ____________________________________
       Council Member 
_________________________________   
Office of the Town Attorney    ____________________________________ 
       Council Member 
 
 
        
 

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 65 of 80



Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida

Town Council 

AGENDA ITEM REPORT AGENDA

MANAGER’S REPORT ITEM NO.8.a.

MEETING DATE: 11/03/2015

October 29, 2015 No activity on this item

October 13, 2015
Telephone call to Mr. George Webb, County engineer, and left a message for a 

return call.

October 8, 2015
Simmons & White submitted an analysis of the traffic light cost (attached) based 

on the Minto Proposal.

September 29, 2015
The town's traffic engineer should finish the costing during this week and can be 

available on the agenda of 10/20/2015.

September 1, 2015

Town traffic engineer determining cost for items not included in the Minto 

proposal.  This is needed in order to determine amount of Town funding 

needed.

August 25, 2015

Received email and will look to analyzing potential cost to implement light at D 

Road and Okeechobee.  Transmitted information to Town Engineer for very 

preliminary estimates of cost.
August 12, 2015 No activity on this item
July 15, 2015 No activity on this item
June 30, 2015 No activity on this item
May 11, 2015 No activity on this item

April 15, 2015

This office met with representatives from Minto.  Discussion points were 

covered regarding the proposed funding of the traffic control appurtenances for 

D Road and Okeechobee.  Staff will review the information and report progress 

at the June 16 Town Council meeting. 
April 1, 2015 No activity on this item

March 1, 2015
This office has received communication and we are trying to establish a date and 

time during the week of March 9th.  
February 10, 2015 No activity on this item
January 26, 2015 No activity on this item
January 14, 2015 No activity on this item

December 29, 2014

A discussion with Minto’s attorney indicated Palm Beach County would agree for

the Town and Minto to enter into a funding agreement which may exclude the

County.

October 27, 2015 Emailed road contribution agreement and expect funding soon.

September 24, 2015
Teleconference with Town Attorney RE: agreements and some legal issues 

waiting to be reconciled.

September 23, 2015
Teleconference with Lauree Simmons regarding PILOT funding for $7,000 and 

road contribution for $100,000.

Traffic:  Staff is working with Minto to draft an agreement between Minto and the Town for the funding 

Pilot and Road Contribution:  Big Dog Rescue

Page: 1 of 42015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 66 of 80



Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida

Town Council 

AGENDA ITEM REPORT AGENDA

MANAGER’S REPORT ITEM NO.8.a.

MEETING DATE: 11/03/2015

October 29, 2015 No activity on this item

September 17, 2015

Met with owners, Denise & Marcel Bosse, of Red Clover Nursery to discuss 

potential of expanding the trail easement along the northern boundary of their 

property.  The owners were general receptive.  I advised the Town would 

prepare a survey after the Town receives the survey from the LGWCD.

October 29, 2015 No activity on this item

October 29, 2015 No activity on this item.  Due to return to Council for further consideration.

October 6, 2015
Town Council requested this item for the 10/20/15 agenda for culvert 

replacement policy postponed to 11/6/15

September 22, 2015

A culvert appears to be collapsed under the road leading into C canal.  Property 

Owners are looking for relief in fixing the culvert and road after the repair.  The 

Town collects gas tax for this road; however, the road is not the same as 

Compton, Marcella, and Bryan.

October 29, 2015 No activity on this item

October 14, 2015
Staff was unable to contact SFWMD to set a meeting to review letter to property 

owners on 43rd

September 30, 2015
No activity on this item.  Staff will reach out to the SFWMD during the week of 

October 5.
September 7, 2015 No activity on this item
August 12, 2015 No activity on this item

July 15, 2015
No meeting has been set by SFWMD and the Town to discuss the contents of the 

letter.

June 30, 2015
No meeting has been set by SFWMD and the Town to discuss the contents of the 

letter.

June 11, 2015 Staff received a proposed letter from SFWMD to the property owners on 43rd

May 27, 2015

Received a telephone call from Ken Mudd regarding a draft letter that will be 

sent and establishing a meeting date.  It is believed the draft letter will be 

forthcoming in the next week or two.

Roads:  This office met with Angela Hendrichsen Sandoval, P. E., PMP, Section Leader, and Ken Mudd, 

Roads/Culvert Replacement:  Attended a meeting at West C Road and Timberlane to meet the District 

Administrator and Supervisor

Trails:  6th Court North, Red Clover Nursery

Page: 2 of 42015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 67 of 80



Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida

Town Council 

AGENDA ITEM REPORT AGENDA

MANAGER’S REPORT ITEM NO.8.a.

MEETING DATE: 11/03/2015

May 11, 2015 No activity.
April 14, 2015 No activity on this item.
April 1, 2015 No activity.

February 23, 2015
Ms. Hendrichsen Sandoval stated that this office will be notified in advance of a

letter will be drafted informing residents of a meeting to discuss the matter.

February 11, 2015 No activity.

January 15, 2015

This office received communication from SFWMD regarding their internal work 

to plan their path forward.  Upon completing their planning effort, they will be 

in touch with staff.
January 14, 2015 No activity from SFWMD representative
December 16, 2015 No activity

October 29, 2015   Bid opening date 11/2/2015 at 2pm

October 9, 2015
Advertisement published in PB Post and posted on the Town's web site.  Bid 

opening date 11/2/2015 at 2pm

September 26, 2015

An RFP for services ranging from road grading, tree trimming, mowing, street 

sign installation, road watering, OGEM repairs, and similar services has been 

prepared and is currently being reviewed by legal, engineering and the OIG.  

Once completed, the Town will place the advertisement in local newspapers and 

the Town's web site at a minimum.  The goal is to have this published by 

October 6th.

October 29, 2015 Met with Jim Stiles, PBC Utility Director for preliminary discussions.

October 14, 2015
No activity as of this date.  Will work to contact PBC utility before the 10/20/15 

Town Council meeting.

October 29, 2015 No activity on this item
October 14, 2015 No activity

July 29, 2015
His legal counsel has been advised that documents he requested copies of are 

available.  We have had no response.
July 15, 2015 A lien has been filed on this property.  

Water Utility:  Work to avoid Town residents from paying an extra 10% for potable water service to 

Royal Palm Beach Request for Proposals for Public Works related functions.

Purchasing:  Request for Proposals for Public Works related functions.

Unauthorized living structures:  Pursuant to Town Council instruction, staff initiated action against 

Page: 3 of 42015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 68 of 80



Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida

Town Council 

AGENDA ITEM REPORT AGENDA

MANAGER’S REPORT ITEM NO.8.a.

MEETING DATE: 11/03/2015

June 30, 2015
Attorney for Mr. Cherney reviewed documents; however, he continues to request 

additional time  and information

May 29, 2015
Attorney for Mr. Cherney reviewed documents; however, he was unable to finish his 

review

May 11, 2015
Staff is working to complete a public records request relative to this case as of 

May 11, 2015.

May 5, 2015
Staff began the survey and will finish and work to prepare a report for either the 

April 21, or May 5, 2015, agenda.
Additionally, staff has proceeded with various actions on other properties 

initiated by individuals.

October 29, 2015 No activity on this item
October 14, 2015 Waiting for response of timeline.
June 8, 2015 No activity to report
June 3, 2015 Provided information to the Town planner for thoughts and comments.

3. ATTACHMENTS

FY2016 Town Hall Holiday Schedule

Simmons & White Traffic Signal Analysis

4. FINANCIAL IMPACT

Not applicable.

5. RECOMMENDED ACTION

Motion to receive and file report.

Roads:   Folsom Road Traffic Calming

Page: 4 of 42015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 69 of 80



 

 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida 

Town Council Agenda Item Report 
 

Agenda Item No. 8.b. 
 

Meeting Date:  11/3/2015 
 

SUBJECT: Development of Town of Loxahatchee Groves 2016 Legislative Agenda  
 

l. BACKGROUND/HISTORY 
 

Issue:   Each year the Palm Beach County League of Cities prepares a legislative agenda to focus on 
key topics to be discussed with local, state and federal legislative bodies and agencies. 

 
Recommended Action:  Town Council to provide input regarding items to be included in the 
development of the Town’s FY2016 Legislative agenda. 

 
Town Council should prepare a legislative agenda packet listing the policies, projects, and special 
interests of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves which can be presented to local, state and federal 
legislative bodies and agencies to further our goals and objectives. 

 

2.CURRENT ACTIVITY 
 

 

The Palm Beach County League of Cities FY2016 Legislative p r io r i t ie s  
included the following issues: 

 
• Supports public records reform; 
• Supports legislation that repeals the state preemption of the regulation of vacation rental 

properties; 
• Opposes legislation that mandates local governments and their taxpayers bear the cost of  
• relocating utility equipment; 
• Supports legislation advancing new economic incentives for distressed areas; 
• Supports legislation that affirms the home rule powers of municipalities to establish and fund 

municipal employee benefit levels; 
• Recommends moratorium on mandates of any kind during the 2016 legislative 

session; 
• Monitor the effects of growth management legislation; 
• Supports focus on state resources for local workforce and career training at all education 

levels;  
• Support increased state funding for building and maintenance of educational facilities; 
• Supports using resources from Amendment 1 for enhancement of water quality; 
• Supports legislation appropriating $30 million annual doc stamp tax revenue to the 

Ecosystem Management and Restoration Trust Fund; 
• Supports financial and regulatory initiatives that prioritize and encourage properties with 

septic tanks to connect to sewer systems; 
• Supports legislation that simplifies Florida’s Sales and Use Tax System; 
• Supports legislation that preserves local control of transportation planning; 
• Supports legislation that protects the general revenues collected from the Community 

Services Tax; 
• Supports legislation that creates a level playing field in relationship to pari-mutuel 

facilities; 
 
 2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 70 of 80



 

• Supports legislation maintaining dedicated funding categories for house rehabilitation, 
economic development and neighborhood and commercial revitalization. 
 

• Supports federal legislation that defined and establishes minimum regulatory standards for 
sober home facilities. 

 
Attached is the Palm Beach County League of Cities Legislative Priorities and Issues for 2016.  
Because these positions are more general in nature, some issues may not apply to the Town or may 
conflict with our position.  
 
Some Town Council members will be attending the Florida League of Cities Legislative Conference 
in mid-November where the city, town, and village local governments will be setting a state-wide 
legislative agenda. 
 
The Town Council should consider identifying and adopting our legislative agenda at the December 
1st meeting after considering both the Palm Beach County Municipal League and Florida League of 
City legislative policy statements.   
 
Upon adopting of the Town’s legislative objectives, the Council should consider attending and using 
the Palm Beach County Day in Tallahassee to advocate for the Town’s policies and objectives to the 
legislators during the legislative session.  

 
The Legislative Agenda adopted by the Palm Beach County League of Cities is attached as reference.   
  

 
Key Legislative Dates are listed below: 

 
 December 1 – Town Council Meeting to Adopt the Town’s Legislative Policies 
 January 12    –  Opening Day of the 2016 Regular Legislative Session 
 January 12-13 – Palm Beach County Day – Tallahassee 
 March 11       -   Last Day – 2016 Legislative Session 

 
If the Town adopts it’s FY2016 Legislative Agenda, the Town Council (individually and/or 
collectively) and staff will be authorized to advocate on behalf of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves in 
person or in writing in an effort to move forward the Town’s objectives. With direction from Town 
Council, staff will prepare a strategy to pursue local, state, and federal funding through the 2016 
Legislative Agenda. 

 
We request Town Council   identify any   issues for inclusion in the Town’s FY2016 Legislative 
agenda.  This will allow staff, Councilmembers and/or paid lobbyist to advocate these positions on 
the City’s behalf. 

 

  3. ATTACHMENTS 
 

Palm Beach County League of Cities - 2016 L e gislative Agenda 
Guide:  How to Effectively Communicate with Your Legislators 

 
4. FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 

 Limited funding has been provided in the FY2016 adopted budget for lobbyist services.   
 

 

5. RECOMMENDATION 
 

 

It is recommended that the Town Council provide input as to the content of the Town’s FY2016 
Legislative Agenda and then adopt it. 2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 71 of 80



 

 
 

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 72 of 80



Mailing Address:
Palm Beach County League of Cities, Inc.

P.O. Box 1989, Governmental Center
West Palm Beach, FL 33402

Office Address:
Governmental Center, 10th Fl, Suite 1002.17

301 North Olive Avenue
West Palm Beach, FL 33401

Tel. (561) 355-4484 · (Fax) 355-6545

League Staff:
Richard Radcliffe, Executive Director

rradcliffe@pbcgov.org
Je’Riise Hansen, Office Manager

jhansen@pbcgov.org
Trela White, Esquire, League Attorney

(561) 586-7116 · (Fax) 586-9611
trela@cwda-legal.com

Executive Committee:
Hon. Dawn Pardo, President

dpardo@rivierabch.com
Hon. Robert Shalhoub, 1st Vice President

rshalhoub@lakeclarke.org
Hon. Keith James, 2nd Vice President

kjames@wpb.org
Mo Thornton, Secretary-Treasurer

mthornton@atlantisfl.gov
Hon. Steve B. Wilson

Immediate Past President
dbuff@bellglade-fl.com

Welcome
The purpose of the Palm Beach County League
of Cities’ Legislative Agenda is to articulate,
advocate, promote and advance issues that may
significantly impact municipalities within Palm
Beach County. The League of Cities exists to
promote and advance best practices and
collective interests of the municipalities in Palm
Beach County; to study municipal problems and
seek solutions to them through cooperative
efforts; and to encourage and work for the
welfare of our citizens in Palm Beach County,
providing the best quality of life possible
countywide. The League was chartered in 1969
as a nonpartisan, nonprofit corporation by and
for municipalities. We are a recognized IRS-
501(c)(4).

38 Municipal Members by Area
District 1:

Juno Beach, Jupiter, Jupiter Inlet Colony,
Lake Park, Mangonia Park, North Palm
Beach, Palm Beach, Palm Beach Gardens,
Palm Beach Shores, Riviera Beach & Tequesta

District 2:
Cloud Lake, Glen Ridge, Haverhill, Lake
Clarke Shores, Loxahatchee Groves, Palm
Springs, Royal Palm Beach, West Palm Beach
& Wellington

District 3:
Atlantis, Boynton Beach, Greenacres,
Hypoluxo, Lake Worth, Lantana, Manalapan,
South Palm Beach & Village of Golf

District 4:
Boca Raton, Briny Breezes, Delray Beach,
Gulf Stream, Highland Beach & Ocean Ridge

District 5:
Belle Glade, Pahokee & South Bay

Links to individual municipal websites
and to get more information visit:

www.leagueofcities.org

2016 Key Dates:
January

12 Opening Day of the 2016
Regular Legislative Session

12-13 Palm Beach County Day -
Tallahassee

February
2-3 Florida League of Cities

Legislative Action Days -
Tallahassee

March
11 Last Day-

2016 Legislative Session
5-9 National League of Cities

Congressional City Conference,
Washington, D.C.

August
18-20 Florida League of Cities Annual

Conference – Diplomat Resort,
Hollywood

November
16-19 National League of Cities

Annual Congress of Cities and
Exposition - Pittsburgh, PA

The League Board of Directors
and General Membership meetings
are usually held on 4th Wednesdays

of each month at various host city
and Associate locations around

Palm Beach County.

For more information visit:
www.leagueofcities.org

Palm Beach
County

League of
Cities

Legislative
Priorities
& Issues
2016

The League represents the thirty-eight
municipalities of Palm Beach County,

plus over eighty associate,
government, non-profits & business

organizations.

“Shared visions & best practices
make for better communities.”

Visit us at...
www.leagueofcities.org

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 73 of 80



The League of Cities
2016 Legislative Priorities

The League of Cities supports legislation that
strengthens municipal self-governing powers.
“Home Rule,” or government closest to the
citizens, is key to a successful democracy.

Public Records
The League of Cities supports public records
reform to discourage or eliminate schemes
designed to generate violations of public records
laws, as well as limit harassing or unreasonable
public records requests.

Vacation Rentals
The League of Cities supports legislation that
repeals the state preemption of the regulation
of vacation rental properties in order to allow
local governments to regulate such properties
to protect the health and welfare of residents,
visitors and businesses.

Relocation of Utilities
The League of Cities opposes legislation that
mandates local governments and their taxpayers
bear the cost of relocating utility equipment
when the equipment is located within a public
utility easement or right-of-way and needs to
be relocated for public purposes.

Economic Development
The League of Cities supports legislation
advancing new economic incentives for
distressed areas and providing increased
flexibility for municipalities to enter into
public-privatepartnership agreements.

Pension  Plans & Benefits
The League of Cities supports legislation that
affirms the home rule powers of municipalities
to establish and fund municipal employee
benefit levels, and specifically provides
comprehensive pension reform, disability
presumption reform, and a mechanism for
municipalities to revoke their election to
participate in the Florida Retirement System.

Mandates
The League of Cities recommends a
moratorium on mandates of any kind during the
2016  legislative session. Local governments
are working to maintain current service levels
within the confines of an economic downturn.
We request that the state legislature allow time
for municipalities to focus on current
requirements without added regulations.

Effective Growth Management
The League of Cities will continue to monitor
the effects of growth management legislation
and oppose efforts that would undermine a local
government’s planning and zoning authority.

Workforce Training
The League of Cities supports the focus on state
resources for local workforce and career
training at all education levels and subsequent
job placement, with particular interest to our
inland port cities in Western Palm Beach
County.

State Funding for Educational
Facilities

The League of Cities supports increased state
funding for building and maintenance of
educational facilities for local universities and
Palm Beach County schools.

Amendment 1 Distribution
The League of Cities supports using resources
from Amendment 1 for enhancement of water
quality and beach management.

Beach Management
The League of Cities supports legislation
appropriating the $30 million annual doc stamp
tax revenue to the Ecosystem Management and
Restoration Trust Fund for beach preservation
and repair. The League supports the elimination
of redundancy in state and federal permitting,
while encouraging the streamline of permit
application review, which would reduce project
cost, accelerate the permitting process and
eliminate agency conflicts.

Water Quality & Supply
The League of Cities supports legislation
addressing water quality and quantity issues that
affect local communities’ aquifers, surface
waters and estuaries. Specifically, the League
supports efforts to maintain, revitalize and
protect Palm Beach County’s water quality in
the Glades, flooding and water retention, and
the restoration of the Loxahatchee River and
Lake Worth Lagoon.

Septic Tanks
The League of Cities supports financial and
regulatory initiatives that prioritize and
encourage properties with septic tanks to
connect to centralized sewer systems, especially
in areas that impact rivers, estuaries, first
magnitude springs and impaired water bodies.

Internet Sales and Use Tax
The League of Cities supports legislation that
simplifies Florida’s Sales and Use Tax System
and qualifies the state for participation in the
Streamlined Sales and Use Tax Agreement,
thereby making it easier for out-of-state
businesses to collect and remit taxes to Florida.

Palm Beach County LEAGUE OF CITIES, Inc. www.leagueofcities.org www.leagueofcities.com 2016 Legislative Agenda

Transportation
The League of Cities supports legislation that
preserves local control of transportation
planning and provides opportunities for
additional revenue options to fund municipal
transportation infrastructure projects including
roads and rails.

Communication Service &
Local Business Tax

The League of Cities supports legislation that
protects the general revenues collected from the
Communications Services Tax and the local
business tax which are used to provide services
that our citizens want and need, including public
infrastructure, public safely services and public
transportation infrastructure. Municipalities
have absorbed significant increases in
operational cost while receiving less tax
revenues.

Gaming / Gambling
The League of Cities supports legislation that
creates a level playing field in relationship to
pari-mutuel facilities in South Florida.

Housing & Small City CDBG
Policy

The League of Cities supports legislation
maintaining dedicated funding categories for
housing rehabilitation, economic development,
and neighborhood and commercial
revitalization, with adequate verification
safeguards that ensure grants will primarily
benefit low and moderate-income families.

Federal Legislation
Residential Sober Houses

The League of Cities supports legislation that
defines and establishes minimum regulatory
standards for sober home facilities and allows
for more stringent local regulations of these
facilities.

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 74 of 80



Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida 
Town Council  

AGENDA ITEM REPORT 
AGENDA ITEM NO.  

MEETING DATE: 11/03/2015 
 

PREPARED BY:   William F. Underwood, II 
  

SUBJECT:  Okeechobee Corridor Master Plan  
  
1.  BACKGROUND/HISTORY  
  

  

Problem Statement:  The Town Council has extended the moratorium on Okeechobee 
Boulevard and needs to approve a modified Comprehensive Plan, land use and zoning for the 
Okeechobee Corridor.  
 
Problem Solution:   Provide additional funding for the Planning and Zoning Board to prepare 
recommendations for Town Council consideration.  

The Town Council is placing a moratorium on commercial activities on Okeechobee Boulevard 
corridor.  The Council directed the Planning and Zoning Board to prepare recommendations for 
possible implementation into the Town’s Comprehensive Plan, land use, and zoning which will 
provide guidance to commercial activities in the corridor.  

  
2.  CURRENT ACTIVITY  

  

Staff prepared a revised estimate of the potential cost to work through the development 
process with the Planning and Zoning Board.  Staff has reviewed the scope of the project and 
guesstimates the cost of the effort.  Including staff time to prepare meeting agendas, minutes, 
and other documentation, we believe the estimated amount will approach $13,800 would 
sufficient. 

  
3.  ATTACHMENTS  
   Work Authorization 2015-01 
  
4.  FINANCIAL IMPACT  
  
  Budget provided from Comprehensive Planning and Zoning department for Other Services.  
  
5.  RECOMMENDED ACTION  
 Motion to authorize the Mayor to execute work authorization 2015-01 with additional budget of 
$13,800 for the Okeechobee Corridor planning effort. 

 

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 75 of 80



Consultant: Underwood Management Services Group, LLC. and Land Research Management
Work Authorization No.: 2016-02 Date: November 3, 2015

Address: 840 NE Stokes Terrace
                   Jensen Beach, Fl. 34957
Brief Description of Task: 

Compensation elements are as follows:

Method of Compensation Amount ($) Change OrderTotal AmountTask Code

Estimated 72 @ $125/hour 9,000$            8,000$      17,000$   

Planning

Principal 6 hours; staff support 900$               1,500$      2,400$     

UMSG 
Review

Estimated 36 @ $125/hour 4,500$            3,500$      8,000$     

Planning

Principal 3 hours; staff support 450$               800$         1,250$     

UMSG 
Review

Total: 14,850$          13,800$    28,650$   

Other Notes:

Task 1. - Land Research Management - 
LPA hours with Land Research 
Management assuming 5 or 6 
meetings, prepare agendas, staff 
reports, minutes, meeting follow-up, 
preparation of final report to Council 
attendance to Council.Task 1. - Conference with UMSG 
Principal, produce agendas, minutes, 
assist preparation of final report to 
Council

Task 2 - Prepare the amendments and 
staff report, prepare legal notices and 
the ordinanc, attendanced at advertised 
LPA and Council meetings, prepare 
transmittal and submittal packages.
Task 2 - Conference with Principal, 
publish amendments and staff report, 
publish legal notices and the ordinance, 
review transmittal and submittal 
packages.

Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida
Work Authorization No.: 2015-01

Continutation of the Okeechobee Boulevard Corridor planning effort and recommendation to Town Council for adoption 
within the moratorium deadline.  The work will consist of: 1 - Working with the LPA to prepare a recommendation to the 
Council; and 2 - Processing of the amendments.

The total amount or the limiting amount of the compensation will be: $14,850.00 unless additional services are authorized by 
the Town.

Town Council recommended extending the Okeechobee moratorium from December 2015 to July 2016.  Pursuant to 

original authorization, the action requires additional work by the Town's Planner and UMSG, beginning with a 

workshop December 5, 2015, with the public.  Additional funding in the amount of $13,800.

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 76 of 80



2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 77 of 80



2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 78 of 80



2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 79 of 80



 

{00052410.1 1574-0702400 }  

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

 

INTER-OFFICE CORRESPONDENCE 

  

MEMORANDUM NO. 2015-001 
 

TO:  Mayor David Browning 

  Town Council 

 

CC:  William Underwood, Town Manager  

  Janet Whipple, Town Clerk 

 

FROM: Michael D. Cirullo, Office of the Town Attorney  MDC 
  Jacob G. Horowitz, Assistant Town Attorney JGH 

 

DATE:  January 5, 2015 

 

RE: Town of Loxahatchee Groves / New State Law on Ethics Training 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

In 2014, the Florida Legislature amended Section 112.3142, F.S. (the "Statute"), thereby 

requiring all municipal elected officers to complete four ( 4) hours of ethics training each 

calendar year. 

 

This training must address, at a minimum, the following topics: 

 

1)  Ethics in Government (Article II, Section 8 of the Florida Constitution); 

2)  Code of Ethics for Public Officers and Employees (Part III, Ch. 112, F.S.); 

3)  The Florida Public Records Act (Ch. 119, F.S.); and 

4)  The Sunshine Law (Ch. 286, F.S.) 

 

This requirement begins January 1, 2015.  In accordance with the Statute, the Florida 

Commission on Ethics ("FCE") is adopting rules which establish minimum course content for 

those portions of the ethics training pertaining to the Florida Constitute and Ch. 112, F.S.  The 

Statute requires those officers required to receive ethics training to do so "as close as possible" to 

the date that he or she assumes office. 

 

Beginning with the Form I financial disclosure forms that are due July 1, 2015, the FCE will 

include a check box on the form for filers to certify that they have completed the required 

training.  These forms are filed with the Supervisor of Elections ("SOE"). 

 

The FCE website (http://www.ethics.state.fl.us/) has been updated with a number of video and 

audio links that may assist elected municipal officials to satisfy this new statutory requirement. 

 

Please contact our office if there is any additional information that we can provide. 

 

 

MDC:JGH 

 

2015-11-03 Town Council Agenda Packet 80 of 80


	2015-11-03 TC Agenda
	Item 3a.
	Item 3b.
	Item 3c.
	Item 3d.
	2015-11-03_AIR_FY2015Copier lease
	Lease Agreement for Lanier Copier

	Item 3e.
	2015-11-03_AIR_FY2015BudgetAmend
	Resolution No 2015-36 Budget Amendment FY2014-2015
	Exhibit A to Resolution No. 2015-36 FY2015_Budget_amendments

	Item 5a.
	Item 7a.
	Item 8a.
	Item 8b.
	Agenda Report Item No. 8.b
	PBCLOC 2016 Priorities

	Item 10a.
	2015-11-03 AIR Okeechobee Corridor Plan
	2015-01_WA_Okeechobee

	Item 11a.1.
	Item 12b.



